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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue
Revenue has increased by

over 82% In the last 3 years

frcm £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Cur renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Qver the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
oredeminantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive’'s review

Cur Group was N a s0'd position ceming cut of
the lockdown response to Covid-19, and our
businiess has confinued to perform rogustly
throughao.o: the year. Th.s year has seen some
unforecasted grow! n vaiue Of certzin civisions
promarily drven by the ncrease ir enargy orices
rern lrading tim ed ["the Cfrrpaw or wgetner
with 1ts subs.diaries "the Group’] targets consistent
growth for shareholders over tre long term, with a

focus on steady anc prediciabe growth, this's
particulary reportast durng more challenging
economic condivers We nave a diversified ahd

ature businessz befiting a Sroup w im more thar

12 years of trading h story a~2 ambiton Tre Growp
cemerizes maore fhan 300 compan es that rave

)
fe]
D}
py
g

ated 1IN 3 rarge of sectors over rany years
gererating steady lorg-term growh far cur

We c:porate n essential sectors that
we expect to per‘orm stead ly through market

voalatlity

From fhis secure base we have been able to ado
mcrermental expansion and civersification in a

maessurec way threugn sesking out opportunies n
neve adjacent sectors These sectors prcwde s

vt a platiorm to contrue 1o expand i bne with
our ex:sting strategy. Today, Our Group cormpnses
cnergy, progerty iending, healthcare infrastructur
fbro and house buiiding dvisions We rave grown
1o be a significant oresence within our mos:
established seciors, producing 4.2% of the (Kt
salar erergy and 1.7% of the U<'s cnshore wind
energy cutpout, and cwlding a £3261m saort and
rrechurn terrr: terding business thar fac
constructizr ang 'moroverrent of homes

trroaghout tre LK

~as

The Cormpany's share price dewvered 10% growtt
over the pa'st 12 montas, well aread of cur arget

f 4% growtn ger annume The extracrdinary growin
Iz attnbutanle 1o cur erergy Givs on waich has

penehtied frorm & cignificart norease inlong-term
o
ot

energy price foraecasts and energy forward rates

over ine pencd, naaditon 1o nfiaticn, This

toncrease in the vaue of cur enargy divsion was
oported by sclid operationat performance across
: aH sectors and some organic growtr In newer

We rerniain a sugportive emoloyer, with mare than
1,690 full-time staff across ine busnesses that we
own and operate, and marrect envployrment
prov:ded for hurdreds more peogle through
contracts that we have in place.

A reflection on our year
Out business raised £404m frorr 1nvestors this year,

delivereg consistent revenaes while growing capits

deployment, resutirg in £/12m in revenoe
generated acrose the Groun (2021 £425m; ard res

assets of £2, 219 (2022 £1 888m restateq)

The finanaa; statements for the year show an
cperatrg prohit before ax of £43m aga.nst our

ﬂxp&%cted outcome of a srmal accounticg proat. Trs

a3
chust performance i3 a cirect result of energy
DFOdUCE-’J Ly e group beir

1G sold for higher prices
aurng tha year A-frcst 6“, Of Qur Dusness
cormprizes rencwabie energy generatirg assets such
as solar energy sites and wind farmrs, which provide
long-term reverue strearrs, "nese are ntent.onaly
diversifed across a range of recnnologies to niligate
against poor gecrrance N a specifiic sector g
contribute towards steadly, preqc‘aote snare grice
growtr, however, thelr vawues can Ul be impactea

oy changes in pncng and demand, We have seen
consecuiive and matenal increases inlong term

energy price forecasts and encrgy forwars rates

obaly over the last 15 ronths as the global

=1

econcmy recovers from the Covid-12 panderric,

and Seeks aterratve sources of erergy as 2 result o*
g witk rifiation these
i tne vale of the

¢ Cur assets n these sectors have been nostered this
D oyear with te acquisitior: of stes ir complermentary

Dojurisd-ctions. as we L as Jsing oL expertise o enter
Potme LK commercial and industral rocfop scler
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Chief Executive's review

markets and starting corstruction on a iarge wina
farm in Austrelia, At the start of the year we added
nine adaitonal sites (o our reserve power division
which Brings us up e 2€ sites ir o1&l 1o
ten sites for most of 20211 Tnese sites nave
pertorrned ahead

EBITDA of £26m (2

mpared 1o

of expeciatons, generating
1 a

G21 firm} durng the ye

Crur successful and well-establsred pioma
divisior continues to pericrm weil grd haz

deivered stasle rerurns since acquisition in 2 G15.
Thes year, | have been particuiarly pleased to see
strorg performance at our newest Dicmass site
eterior, Bast Argl

2071, provirg to be a valuable acdnon o (e

a, whicn was acguirec in Aoril
ousingss During the year we vurchased a Waste-
to-Energy faclity currently unger corstruction ir
Ayrshire. Tre fac:lity has beer‘. In development for
three years and will be capable of o
185,600 tonnes per annum of non
ousenold, commercizl and indu
ku[d ctheranse be sent @ landfll or expored

SIOCESSING OVer
--'ecyc\able
striat waste which
Ths wil generate 17 MWe of low carbon erecinoty,
enough to power 30,000 hormas [t will be the frst
large-scale, subs'dy free waste-to-grergy project n
western Scetland and projected completion date i<
in early 2024,

Over recen: years, many of our energy assets nave
been under censtruchon which Fas contnibuted to
our previcLsly reporied accounting logsas. Tnis s
tyo.cal of such businesses during growth phase
even when cash generative, because finance costs
and accounting charges, such as depreciat:cn,
excaeded revenues. Tnis dwvis'on has now reached
our target size and sector split

iy ths year
accounting prfﬁt before tax of £48m agamst cur
pudgetea small accountirg profit, This slightly
orofit is due to the maturity of

Accordng i am pleased 1o regort an

larger than expectea
the portfolic and higher energy prices; resulting in
ricreased revenie from our energy dvision as well
d belowl.

as an increase in inflation (a3

explaine

Qur property lending ousingss makes Jc around

27% of the Group and cor-prises shat and medium
term secured loans 1o experienced property

rals Thic established part of
ollowirg a short period

Sur business

orofession
continued W perorm well,

of slow down during Covid-19 when we
mtentioraly chose o write fewer loans. Our

182 loans s year to UK barrowers

average

ican ook was

2ur lending division nas always operated at

conservative ioan to varue evels (beiow 707 in
order tn

there is a reductior in oro

at it mamtairs access to valuable security of
erty values This strategy

v

Fas served the Grouo WE‘H since noeption 12 years
ago, and it has cperated through pericds of change

everal turigs The

i

Group s taking a naturaily
tauhious anoroacn wihen asses

n I'ght of the chang=nc ECTNOMIC

o

sing rew lending
a0 por LUnteEs
outiock To aate tie Group kas lent 22 Zor of
property leans since arzcept,on in 2010, s

This strrong track record

uifering
cnly £6min capital loszes
's the result of cur careful
comprisig disciplined due «
Le ratics and an atility and wilingress to
reduce actuaty in this secio

approach ¢ rhis secior,
tigence conservative
loan-to-val
r durnng tmes of
We it

eConomIc uncertamny. Lcontinue to adopt

this approach trroughout the coming year

The nealthcare dviscn makes up around 4% of the
Group and is broacly performing well Our
retirement villages business, Rangeford Holdings
Limired "Rangeford”) continued to sel apartrments
at three sites, commenced construction of a fourth
village in Cherisey, and acguired a fifth location

rear Cambr dge during the yaar Sales at the

Chertsey site are expected to commence i 2024,
whie construcion at the Cambridgs site 15

sxpected o start in 2023 with the first saies
commaeancing irn 2026

Our fibre division was established in 2019 and
rernains an area of growth for the Group. now
comprising of six operating businesses. Cur
residential businesses, Jurassic Fbre, Swish Fibre,




N
(U]

;
-
T
E‘*i_‘
&
I
()
A
i

Chief Executive’s review

0

wganet ard Alipoirts

Fibre are building utrafast
troadiand netwerks in
overlooked by
Gigane: provides conneclivity o

i

il

ore 1o the

premises’
regions of th
larger opearaters

e UK whicr have beer
homes ard businesses across the UK using CityFiore
d Vit s a software
ped
proprietary software to allow internet Service

Q_\

g Qp-ﬂmcach nirastruciure ard

development company which has devels

enzbled
ricludirg Alpoirts Fiore. Yorposs s the

Providers to sell connectivity over whaoles
netwaorks,
UK's ory ded-cated enterprise fbre network (o focus

on provid-ng correcnvity 1o businesses in London
In tre year, our residertia’ ibre bus nessas
continued to invest capita: N expanding thelr

networks n the ~10r‘r‘.e Courties, the Souts and
Southwest of England, anc are now onGoarding
customers 1o ther networ<s, generating recJdrring
revenues for the Group Our state of-the-art
resworks arc able to meet custorner dermand for
nighe broadbahd speeds required as a resuls of

more working-rrom-home ard raress
wleo
also o

=i usage of
-on-corrand services In Lendon, Vorbose has
ntnued to buiid and has instailed over

500xm of 9bre with a comritrmeant to offer 10Gbps
-

fibre 1o Lp 0 15000 busnesses in Certral L

by 2027,

Whist cur fbre avison remams in e growth phase
‘or the next 2-5 years we do not excect Lo report

an accounting profit

Towards the end of the year. we added 2 new

roperty developear to tre Growp, with tne
¥

or £8En.
’ deveiopm roigd-market

acgJistion
Elvia is an

of Elwvia Hormes "Elvig")

established house builde
fariy homesin Lordon ¢
Whie Th

Mrruter towns and

vinages
Group, we par o

e next five

grow It 11 & rmieasured way ove’

/ears witn an ulimate dataver

arget o

600 homes per year, inciuding ¢CU
af*crdab e
feadership tearm who are key to

h.gh gua

Aty

~omres. BEdvia Nas a sirong existing

nning the Dusness

5 regpreserts a very srnal part of the

Inflation and Interest rates

Thie fugher rate of inf.atior expernenced t1is year
has been respersicle for some of the
outperforrnance againsT expectations in the

st that

Lntil 2025, az a

f'orr'pa"vs share price BM Treasury foreca
high ir:fla

resU’t we expect 1o receive more reveriLe for the

tion g Lkey (o be present
energy generalen within cJdr energy division, and a
h:gher valae from the government subsidies that
some of our energy sites seneht from, :ncreas\r;g
tme value of those sites. However, a short period of
Fugh inflation such as forecast has very little effect
or the rate at whion the Group 1s excecied o grow
This is becaluse tre renewabie ene gy sies we own
cenve taer vaiue from discounted projectes faturs
cashilows cver the time they are exgecicd o

operate for, typically 20y or rore f the

tern irflat on were 1o rniores

uwd be posw:ive

outtoox for lkeng-t

impact on our §7ere prce sh

ccadse woud increase the revenue cach of our
sites would expec: to make, in conrast o 3
relatively fxed cost bace
The expecied rise i interest rates g forecast w
return to normal after a sigruficant perod of vary

low rates Tre immediate impact of this on our
busimess 5 expected to he hroadly neutral since

our Group s nenticnally siructured so as not o

experience signficant valug ergsion wien nterest

rates of ange We continue (o take 8 caLtious

approach within cur lending butiness whers tre

rising interest rates are feit more closely, and we

have t~e zblity 10 reduce the nurrber of loars

we write, o alter the risx prefile ¢f curicans

trrough ceducrg loan 1 vaiue ratisos or pausing

activ by in certan parts of the market showd tnat

foe, appropriate



Chief Executive’'s review

Current trading and outlook

Since the year end, the Group nas continued 1o
cerfarm stead.ly from an operational cerspacive
cur expectations albeit we nave
seer chare price growth aheac of target due to the

and in lre with

CONNUES 'NCrease In wong term energy proe

forecasts Our growth targets for tre Group over
the med.um and iong terrn reman urchanged, anc
we contirue to faocus on mamniaining a diversi
busiress that is capable of delivenng more

recictable growth for sharehoiders.

o)

-

{T

h

s

m

Nty anrounced Electnaity Gererator Levy
"EGY wth n e 2023 Finarae Bill, will nave ar
mp ror the returns generated frem Cur energy
nortfolio over the rext 5 years. This is further

dwsc ssed nthe group finance review on page 27

Our propgerty lending business contnues to
perform strongly, with increased denloyment in this
sector snce the year end. We focus on short term
oas {our average carrent loan term s 17 monihis)
which enables us (o adapt to cnarges in cutlos<
swiftly, we feel tn.s s particularly imporant in the

current economic cimate,

e our fealthcare division continues
o oe staole, and we continue to rerran positive
eformance in

aboLr the opgortunities to improve pe
t

sSince year end, we have centnued to buld out our
fore networks, with construciion tracking in lre
with cur expectations We continue to review
opoortuniies for both orgaric and irorganic
arowth

ir delvernn

oporung cur existing management tearns
ng this strategy.

ri Decemper 2022 we have acouired the rghts to

25m of nght to use mobile Jo
U= thos maxing the arst step towards becoming an

mobile virtual nebwork operator,

Iy

enses from "hree

Our reex of business aress nas develoned over time

ng may evolve further Gver the years aheaq, driven
by tne overarcn.Ng mportarce we piace on
mestirg the objectives cf our snareholde s This

should not be reaq as any indicaucn of a wh

O
(/'
@
Il

mgﬁ in the sectors o whicn we operate, but as &
ction of the e Jle played by the sk.atPgic
mandate .n protecing shareholders nterests

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

What we do

Fe'n Trading Lirnited ("Fern
sarly 220 subsidianes {

Grf)up op2rates acros

) Is the parent campany
togetner the "Grous”) Our

key areas. energy.
healthcare, lerdirg. f_‘b!’r and nouse DL .d=r1q Cver
lhe past twelve years we have buill a carefully
giversifed group of operating businesses that are
well postioned (o delver long-term value and
predictable growth ©

Cr Qur sharzholders,

1. Energy division

We gereratc power friom sustairabe sources ard
sell trhe energy produced ether directy 1o mausral
consurers of (o large netwaorks Many of our

recewalble energy sites

quacly for government

neentives, woich recresern: an additcoral sodsce of

income W have also utiliced our expert

=2 I
renewalie encrgy 10 ¢ t facilities for sale or
ing opcraticn At year end the

fes under construg

Sirec
Croun had

Heelgl

2. Healthcare division

We provide hormes and leisare facilives to our

agsing vOO Llation, and private hospitals whicn
provide high-guat Ty healtncare services across

operat:orﬁa\ sites in the U

i 3. Lending division
Powe lend on a short
basis 10 a

and medium term, sécored

arge n ss.onals,

L We slso nrowv

~rhar of property pre
ce fnancing to enable otner cusines

Dot buila assets anc other res dental and

comrercial properics

4. Fibre division

operate Nbre breadband netwaorks
We puild th
networks and cennect therr 1o Rormes and

We cwn and o
across varicous areas of the U

husne
: ibe crmdbar a

5. Home buitding division

I Carng e year we suoeessiuily entered the -

strorg track record of developing rormres in a

sustairaple
prcperty
from thie design, to the engneerng and thea final
CoNsTrLction o en

[=]

maraer. The company & 4 fuil-service

tevelooer, mearing T pr ovides services

sure tre getvery of quamy
workmnanshnip

25 o provide our custorrers with Llirafast

Suse

build ng secior, acguinng Bivia Homes which nas a

Solar, wind,

- Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre . )
rn
la?;gﬁléagszjs development villages, private broadband across Resnds;f;lnhouse
. financing hospitals the UK 3

reserve power

oty

AR i
ERIT RS

Tgnstiasnen
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Our business at a glance

The strength of ouwr Group's strategy s ir both it i pusinesses with comprehensve business plans and
operanona: diversity and the return profile of these 1 strong management teams. This enakiles us o
businezses Cur lending business provides flexibility @ contnue to diversify our busimess without

and strong returme ovar the short term, while our compremising on tre quatly of our operations.

energy, healthcare, ficre and home buiding ¢ Over the pash three years, we have successiully
divisions offer visibicty and stability of refurns over ! entered the fibre broacbard sector and we naw
tne longer term PownN sik companies with exciting plans w deliver

- o ‘ ‘ ‘ cirafast broadband scross the UK
e zcale of our business s a key strangtn, enabling

us 0 acquire large-scale esiablisned operations as
well as the opportunisy o enter nevy sectors with

minimal risk w0 the whole Grouo by seiectng

Sector spf,i'l:'E - Healthcare 1%

Wind 22% —.

- Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

g{;- - Reserve nower 2%
- Sctar 1%

~- Fibre 8%

Solar 20%-~ o
- Healthcare 4%

: - Lendhtl gas and biormass 9%
Otrer 3% 7

Reserve power 6%

H B Owning and operating assets 69%
BE Lending 31%

Bector sp

litis giver by value, as represented on tha company baance sheet of Forr Trading Lrmited.
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Our business at a glance

Where we oparate
We gre proud that the businesses
At our Group make

carinotien to focet

L
reahor. of Femes and the provzion
of guality healtrcare nfrastructure

Souar sites

candfill gas faciies

Bicmass power stations
f

7 r;ageg

e@z%n@@

-
5

T
oy
=
(D
3
D
=
=
A
N

G exCling Cpoori

Austrada, e, lreland, Pcland ana

i the U<, we've

32as, incudi ng

Deen ane to use our ndus

constru

e

iy «nowledge to
ctrg so.arand wind farms in
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Our business at a glance

Making a differgnce

We are proud to operate a Groun that makes a We continue to exterd 1oans o 24 tax drivers and

positive contrhution 1o society across the UK fleets to anable them to use eectric velicles,
generatirg renewable energy, providing quauty reducirng carbon emissions in our cacital,
heaithcare infrastructure and retirement living and

delvering higr-speed broacband to underserved

Fibre
areas of the courty Through our Bre civision we are bulding cut the
fivre ootic breadoand retwork across the UK, Fou
Energy of cur managemenrt teams sre focussed on
We currently own 220 energy sites, preduring building out fibre optic broadband networks for
375GW a year. That's enough energy to power over residential cusiomers and srrall busiresses, and a
a2 milicr homes ffth 1s building a aibre retwork to deliver enterprise
Cur compination of lechrologies soar, wind, connectivity. Cur sixth is & scftware develgpmem
company aperating ir the fibre sector and

prowdw’g SeVICES O Our growp Companies

resarve power, Diomass ard andfill gas
complernent each other well, he:

Wethin this division we Fave plans w create a
network oroviding cornectivity to over one million

meet its energy targets irespective of the weather

The Fern Community Fund is a sociai enterprise run
oy ne Group, whach wiorks to distribute cormmun ty
funds generated from our wind farms. This year. the

propertes in the next three years, "nany of which

are in smiall towrs and villages that den't currently

Fern Community fund has “Warrri 21 4 to loca! have access o internet connectivity i for mogem

Srr L Cmmurty o L dz oV LSS U OCal

ways Of work-ng and commuricating

commurty Groups, supperted 13 lecal unversty =
,4

students through our Student Scholarship Furd, Not cniy are our fibre busingsses bringing

and provided a winter fuel subsidy to 706 residents connectyily 1o underserved corvirmunities, they are

wno gre local w e Group's assets also generating employment opperinites for
oung :ndividuals via train ng academies and

Healthcare y gace N

apprenticeship scnemes, and are drving diversty in
Qur retirement villages provide high-quality. b o Y

contemporary Lving spaces, witn 279
accormmadatior uriss currertly ir place, and
schemes in vanous siages of develcpment offenng
over 500 additional accommaodation unis

Telecoms, with one of ocur companes having
lsunched a number of INttiatives o recruit wormen
nto the secior.

Home building

. Cur home building division utdises a high
A friendly community 15 at the Faart of our ‘ g diisier =l
proportion of sustainable tmber frame construchion
methads and instals air source heat pumpz in al

propert as, leading fne way In this sector ard

retrerment villages, which s why @ ow
developments we provide central facilites and a

Fub of social activity “or our residents. )
elping reduce carhon emissions.

Lending

The loan: we made during the year have helpeg to
fund the construction of student accormmaodation
and ~uch needec residential progerties.

3 iy
atsis PN
50 sumuu gimm




Our strategy in focus

Ciur businesses

Energy generated higrer returns this year tham expected

Trrough cur energy division, the Group owns and 1 dug to rarker conditions but crucizally it hag the
operates energy s'tes whicn supply gas and ! petential to provide stzble returns over the long-

elecincity nto tne network, ac well as construcang 1 term This combination is key 1o our strategy o
zale. Of the 220

that we own and oparate, 194 provide

renewsh.e energy sites for futu-e Gatance risk and "eturn 2cross the range of Group

enargy site actvities to generate target refurns for sharehoicers.
rerewsb.e energy, contricuting 1o the Group's
position as one of the jargest praducers of

remewals.e energy from corermergial scale solar sites §

“Our energy sites generated over
i the UK. Energy sites are typically expected to 3,750 GWh of power.
QEHE’&KG staole L,f”'r s for many years. as such Ciue to tre h‘g)ﬂ gLa |7’j energy = ites we Cawr, we

Cwnirg and operating these busirasses 1s atractive are anle 1o secure long-term financing from

to the Group because of hor potertal w deliver rmairsream banks at competitive raes to enrance
sy ctable nre ol Hale) oy Py -
pred:ctable profits over the (ong e CUr returms, wiich Felos us oo deliver the level of :
Renewahie energy sies generate oower from i oreturrs our shareholders expe 3
: |
sUsta nanle source ar.d sel erergy orsducad either 1 Wi je our renewsble e,q.), bisirase coartad ifs in i
directly o large industrial consurmers or (o the D tme solar energy sector, the Group has lu?lT i
“uAl i A "y SASS =3 e o . . T B ;
neswork Many of our renewshie energy sites al excertise across other adjacent technologies

qualfy for QO‘JC'F‘W'F‘“* ncentves, whch resuils na inciLoing onsicre wind, romass and landhll gas,

porion of the generatec energy benefiturg from

Loported by reserve power 2arts which crovide 5
rates that are tlocked in’ for a cpecifiea perod 0NCe  § paekup power oo the Nat onal Gna. The Gr{)t:p =

FURLID D0V
a gquakfying site 15 operation

alard accreditaton Nas & grarsfore benetts frorm dvers Gcanon within this :
been grantea. This has reduced some of 1Re IMoat 1 part of 1s business, since weaker corditions for :
of the valatility n .ong-term energy price forecasts.

Az new sites Duilt in the UK do not qualify for

anergy producton from ore technoiogy ofter result

in strenger proouction esewhere The Groun .20
Ristoric government INCenives, wWe ae seeing Maore

=

gans ugruficant peneht rom its scale in this sector
interest n e marxet for cites bke the ones we own

&% OUr DUIINEess s SPread across over 220 se

and operate. v ovastly reducing the rnisk wo Group proftacilicy if one

Ll site e i e TR,
Owring and opersting energy sites s a core part of 3 St suffers an operatioral Clsruption

our stratﬂay anc currently makes up almos! 65% of

o
ny
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Did you know? |
if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

S nce returning O NorMmal working patierns we have
seer an increase In the number of patients payin

[m addinon to our JK sites, the Group s deve;ooh’wg
stes overseas, in junsdictions that we anderstand
well, Tnese gresent an atractive uPPO’fLI’Ht/ as they for their own reatment as tney face lorg wating
4sts for NHS treatment Despite the [fung of
widespread restrictions across tre UK, Covid-19
continues o affec the acute care sector with a

blLid on cur seCtor expertse in countrias at an

earlier stage of renewab.e developrrent. Currenty
we operae wind farms inIrelana and Frarce and
stressed NHS and increzsed nfection cortrol
measures that rema n ir glace,

so.ar sites in France and Australia We have several
wind sites under construction in Poland, Franice

ard Adsiralia .
Lending

Lendirg contimues o

ana ras providad tne
ash generatve sector over the past twewve years

hus wetl-estaphished part of our Grouo manrly

During tne year we acquired nire reserve powsar core part of our businress

bhe
plants and cre emerqy from waste site. Following Group with a profitaile and

construction, we soid two wind farms in Finland and

Y

—

shordy after the year end we a150 sold Darington

Point, a iarge soar ste in Australia 1oooniste of property lending, which provides

Healthcare i short-term finanang to experiencad professional
: ro -t laro e o 1

ThroLgh our healhcare dwision, tre Group P Dropeny developers. buy-totatlanclords secking
:oridg ng finance: and ceve.cpment “nancing,

coparates N the privaie medical and retirement living
—~ T owhich provioes short and medium term finarcing
sectors, COur fes:remeﬂt living business, Rangeford, :
. : o companies

Cwns ang operatas twa etiremiert vilages i1 :

Wikishire and Nortn Yorkshire anc 1s currertiy A key penefit of e scale of our Group and of the
developing three further sites for future operatons, | susiness that we have built ug in this sector 15 cur
1 aoility to mitgate risk througn hawing a large
AuTer of short and medium term (cars spread
across small projects 1o irdividual borrcwers. We

Our private medical busiress, One eaithcare owns
and operates Two orivale nospitals in Kent and :

ertfordshire, providing tne very best level of care
‘ oroachively manage counternarty risks thraugh
n mogern, well equipped hospitat faciliies, ) ‘ )
undertaking careful bor-ower due diligence, taking

"Lending continues to be a
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable

and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.

¥
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Gy i



2§ STRATEGIC REPORT

Our strategy in focus

urily Over assets typica.y o rst charge bas:s

and maimianing conservative loan-to-value ratios

Not all loans will perform as expected and these
measures heLp (¢ ominirmise the impact &
performance issues on an indvacua: loan. Thsis

fariher r r*ch: e ihrough e vaiue that we lend e
individual
which is currently spread on average across 182

loans, with an average ngividua: loan of £2 2m

Fibre division

Our fibre divisicn includes five operational
conparies building fbre netwerks in the UK and
ore software development cormpany.

Trrough our resident al Fibre busiress
a fibre networks for

bBuiding new pirysic
comrmonities in e JK ana so far have bt out

Fhre infrastructure in uncerserved parts of Devor
sorviersel, Dorset, Witshyre, |
Waorcestershire and the Home Counties We are
airnng o pase «
rnext tnree

ampshre,

over one milion homes over 1ma
years

Building these largo networs nvoives connecting
large patacentres and teleprione exchanges in the

U~ with nomes and businesses, efectively

reglacing the —opoer wres t-at were laid in he Arst

ha f of tre 20th century, Jurassic, Swish and

‘g ~et are vertically Integrated, as they both owr

Q

-

m'

flre | frogtu_‘ue and alsg nave the enc
crelatiorskig as the internet service

ﬁ

usicme

norrowers, relative to our total lcan Dook,

provider or (ISPT Alipoirts owns fibre infrastructure
and will anboard other 18Ps to the Allpaints network
10 sel connectivity to the erd custormer,

I'rrougn Vorpess we are bu ldng a network .n

cndon to zumpb ousiness-to-business ("B2E"
clivity cirect 1o busimess

ed over 50Ckm of
fbre optic canles n Lordon since 2020 ang 1ac

recen:iy tauncned a sngle 10Gkps product to

ererprise conr
customers Vorboss has instail

arket, recogrising that amiitious Lordon
businesses win quicly reguire more than the 1Gops
cornec tnwt)/ they've rehed or (o aate

W have seen rapd growtn :n our fibre division
sirce 2018 arc we expect this dvision to centinue
to pecome a larger part of our bus Ness over tire
The Group expects 1o sperd approxmately S1bn <
cagital by 2025 w ‘ulfiits puid plans arg reach

more communites o need of sltrafast broachand.

Home building
Qur new norre cuilding basmess, Flivia < a fui
service riousebunder, acquinng land, develop ng the
site, and subseque-ty selling the ~orres to

irawvidua buvers. These sitet inclde 2 mix of cper

ard srive to deuver
Tre Gusimess s
growing fast wih projected annuat iurnaver of
£253m and 600
withn

mMarket and srdable hou

nigh cually asprationa. horras

0 houses ound per year forecastad

thie rext 2-3 years
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham - 7 Jx -l e

Paul .3 Crniel Executve of ferm and s responsible for the cayfto—c'ay running of the
busimess He s also a managirg director of Octopus Investmerts Liried (G,
where ha nas worked since 2205 Qs 2 <ey suppuer Of resource and expertse

to Ferr Pa e dual role ensures thar thes reationstip works e‘fe:t.vely ard inthe

cestinteres erm's shareholders Paul has had varicus general management

and intern a\ u”“T;I FOleS across a numMiser of s2Ctars and Dnngs withi

a wesith of mdusx‘\ 2nd business experence

Helth Willey 0 o0 oo wr 30 o
Heth 1 an assodiaie pro-fessor of strategy and entrepreneursTin at London
Busimess Schoo!l He also holds vanous non-executive directarships and acvisory

rotes af lugh growth a~d maore rrature companies. Inh'e role as non-executive
chairman he s responsible for the effective operation ©F the Board, as wed
as its goverrance. He brings to the Fern bus ness mdependent commeraal

Y gcademia, private eguity irvestment,

expenence gared frorm s time
consulting and various hands-on operat:onal rotes

Petar Bavlow o -Tae ve om0y

Peter has over 30 years experience in interrmaticral financing of irfrastruciure and energy
As 3 senior execuive for international Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
tionships and treasury

Sy

512en of project and corporate funding, 23 wel. as pankirg ret
ctvites He has spent over 20 years working internationally ‘or HS8C, Eank of
America ana Nomura, inancing acguisitcns and greenfield projects in the energy

and irfrastructure sectors His combmnaton of Board-level inancing and energy
experience over nurmerous energy sut-sectors, and hig allbround krowleoge of
ait the sectors in wh\ch Fern operates, adds sigrificant value to the operation of
the Board as well as its stratecy fermation and deployment.

Tirn Aavvhay ~oooovos s oo

Tire i3 a chartered accountant with maore thar 25 vears' international experierce

as a finance oirector of both public ang private companies, Initizlly he waorked

for Price Waterhouse in Birmingram and Chicago. Meore recently he was Chief
Financial Officer of Lightsource Renewable Energy Ltd, a global ieader in the

fundirg, development and long-terr operation of solar photovoitaic projects

Tirn brings extensive financial and accountancy knowiedge 1o the Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic technowgy businesses gained from hig
executive positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

strawegy. Risks anse from exterr

and from operational risks contamed within the
syslerms ana processes errpioyed within the

business

hotn by sector and geography

Risk

Market rlsk

The energy fOr I3 exXpenercng
sigrif cant tursulence and there s
a risk that forecast leve s of INcorne
are: not achieved dae te cnarges in
whiolesale energy prices, off-ta<e
CONTAaCcis or govenment subs.dies
Juc o ‘h '.‘rhu ent envlrr\mmeﬂt,

3 rex.

s in Goverrerent pclicy
reduced ircome

Operational risk:

tevels of energy produced may
be wower thar anticinaieg due te
sLb-optimal weatner condinons

or performance ssues w.th

equiprmert, which rmray result in
:qr; ‘cant rpa'vw‘ dc- n

Flnancwi risk:
Reverues !rrom [Stal=iges!
generahon) G sale proce
from the c'\[,: o‘ swtes} 3 t
fromr overseas are lower than
expecied due f) fiactuatons i
fore-gn exchange rates

Construction risk:

+ + £ orpe
Construct on of the

n T

sIlEs tates
ar 4ﬂr Qr .5 more Costy than
tcpated due to rezource

aval tl by or increased cost of

0)

a
sscociated with the Group's bus!

Mltlgatlons
o Comtracts are enterec inta winch fix th INCOITeE f/)r El

Ferent cormmertial nsks in

- Ovetall risk exposure is managed acros:
the Group througn the diversification of actvites

Maragement ensures ony 3 ch"rH pur*"* of tr

The pri-cipa. naxs “hat e Grol
are descriped below, alorg wih
aSChons we

2
the risk We 3.5

Energy' Dlvislan

corucr of the energy gererated by cur sies

Lorg-term goverrment bac<ed offtake agreements are
P p.ace, such as the Rerewable Ccugstion Ceruncation
["ROC schieme. 30% of our energy NCome was

gererg Tod frorn ROC revenue

We engage with the government and t2 Office &
Electnaty Markets {0 A tC contribu
with palicy makers whao set future regelat

©Gas ard

y reqguireT enis,

e weather is mitigaed Hﬁr'wgb
echnicicgies and wocat on o sie

Reguiar servicing ¢ fas ot s uncertakes 1o ensure a&,>E,""
ar= mp- M good condition and munirdase the gk nat

ets are Unaval dt’: for a wnger perizd

Lrworedrtamlty of s
crveraficatan of te

m

roun's
s ard revenues are exgected to be der ves from

ass

OVErs€as sifes

The Group enters fixed price contracts with contrazics

c
where approprate "o rétuce eXposJre 1o increasing costs

ke to reduce the pote

the market, airclude our asseszme
P otne tkelinood of the ris< has ircresse
toor remamed the sar

o ar ndustry veice

oM
C
— 0
i}
=
gl
T
b4
[e)
&
7y
[
jo3
o
1

ntal irnpact of

nt of wrether

o, gecreased

Change

{due o rnarkat
nstabilityl
e
=

N change

Hafeld
to velatie BX
noveTents)

No cnarge
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Mitigations
Market risk: . Management regularty reviews the compeutive lu”dSCaDF
Expected sales from customers in target build areas to ensure p.ans 4o not conflict with
are lower than anticipated due to otmier alternative network aperators
Increased cormpets on oM oiner « Management ergagos proactively vatn the Office of
providers. Comrunicationrs and the Government to ensare the

A change in policy by e
regulators in favour of larger
operators coula impact our abiuty
to deliver planned developrnens,
reducing revenues and efficientes
GeInec frort atager preseEnce ing
pdrm.ular ares

Constructlon rlsk .
Conztraction of g network

takes longﬁ:r Cris maore costly

than anticipated duc to rescurce
avatsbility or increased cost of

ravw rnaterais

Operational risk: .
Network service s interrupted o
unrel.adte leading to potentai ioss

of customers and reputational
uamag-ﬂ

benefits of smalier operators are weil understood and its
interests ace anpropriately represented.

We are an acuve part.cipant in relevant mdustry odies,
particu'arly those representing allernative network
operators,

“he Group has cortracted with a nurmber of dferert
supplers to reduce the exposure to any ore indrvigual
entity. Selection of cutsource partners s Managed
through a deaied procurement process with long term
vsibility of work allowing partrers 1o plar inancial and
people resources according y

Vnere supply chain croblemns are expected for crticai
items our teams generally have 6 rmonths stock of fibre,
ductand other matenas on kand, ang sdvarce order
'echmcalequ‘pm Nt t!“ {uru ad tmﬂf

r"i\/EESE;"

Cur networks are built in a resilient way with
reute options sholld & fature occur 11 one route.

This, comiired with ar a::llé[y to identify and resolve
correctivity ssues quickly, m rimises downt.me of the
retwores

e,
P
i o
B Mg

R

)

ncreazed
{due (o more
compet;tor; rn

the market)

Increased {due
to InCreasing
demana for
resource in
the sectcr as

alternative
network
providers scale
o i)

o]
R

No change
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Risk Mltigatuans Change

Market rlsk . T he teams pro-actively manage our positen in the
Increasing irflation and interest rrarketplace and are precered to enforce where needec if
rates :;ead 10 & market-wide & loan moves o defaut.

aFordabrlity ssue, resulurg n a « Gur lpans are maace at conservalve loar-to-value ILTY)

. . e
drap In propesty valuss across &l ratios wit a maomurn LTV of 70%.

sectors of real estate. This may
Mpact Sur adilny o recover g
ioar In “ull through a refinance

or Jai
Counlerparty rlsk e Lears are cecured agarst physical uraerlying s fe”lm:y
Loans rmay be made tc unsuitable such as a charge over the p{opeft“ r other assets of the

couniergartes, impacting our
ability to recover the lcan patance
e full

wer These are tyoicaily on a firsi charge basis 1o
sure maximum chance of recovery should enforcemernt %.
ior be recced
= Thorouc™ due diligence 1s perforrmed prior (o wrung

lcans, nclurding property or land valuaions and credr acoromic
rhecks dore on borrowers clirrate)

« Where loars are written ‘or assets urdar constrachon,
miizstonas and coverants are putin lace to encure
SM\JO: are cu’rpxete oricr 1o rclf a’;lrwg futhcr d A wWING.

Risk Mitigations

Market risk (Healthcare and + Planning consents on unrje oped lane are optirnised (o

Home Building): Mmaxim se revenues and reduce the rsk of 105585 0n cal %

A fallir house prices coula , /
. Increased {cLe

moact our 3oty to generafe 0 unstacle

axpacted revende from the sae

of apartments in cur ret rement
vilages ard houses burt bw Flivia.

 eaters fixed ornce contracts where aporcoriale

Construction risk (Healthcare .

and Home Building): o reduce exposure (G Iincreasing matenal costs —
Construction takes longer cr . T’\E Groun only works witi: regutaile 3rd parties with 3 s
s mare Costly than antic pazed strong rack recora of deliver ng simiear srojects No change
due D resource aval'acitly <

Nreased cost of fa WomEer

Health and Safety risk « Tnae Groun reainials @ rolust oolioes ard groceduras

{Healthcare): relating o tne provis.on of meadica. services We review this

Tre greventicn cf injury Gr througn conducting regular nerna! rspections, and ar

avoidable ioss of Uifg of our also supject to externat Inspectionrs by regu atorf bad|e< .
cauerts is of utmaost importarce + The Groud Nas insurance polic esin n\a:e Lo Cover

ardis critizal tc ma:ntain' ng 2 Ararcallosses due to medical ma practc s

gocd regutation. Litigation as
aresult of mea ca. malpractice
Codd resull in damage o

reputaton and in sed Cos!
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Mitigations
Market risk: « Where flcatirg rate dectis in place (where interest varies
Anircreass in base rates may in tne with an undertying oencinmark ratel, the Group %
increase costs on debt facil ues, enters ro Fedging arrangements to fix a portion of these increscad
irmpactng the Group's atlity to payments throughout the term of the facuity Hedging {due o rse In
service debt az 1t falis due. arrangements are cutl red in Note 21 of the financial Intgrest rates)
statements
Liguidity risk: « Adeiled cash f.ow forecast 2 pregared ara reviewed
Poor managerent of cash within by mranagerment cn a monthly bass, incorparaing cash
the Group could :mpact the avalabilly ard cast requirements acrozs the Group On at
Group's ability tc meer obligations least 2 quarterly pasis this s shared wita the Board
as they fall due. « The Group moritors bank covenants o1 an cngeing basis
1o ensure nonunued adhierence to covenanls Whare

covenamts can't be met, forecasts are updated for the No change
stricta

v
lower cash ava lable as a result of the restriction.
« The Group hias a flexigle Arance fachity wh <h can be
drawn on at short nolice 1o mee? ‘mrmeagiate busimess

reeds.
Health and Safety risk: « We have developed -chust bealth and safety policies in
Tre safety of cur employees compliance with 15C45001 across the Group to ersurs
and tnoie empioyeg wrough the wel-being of our staff
centracts are of naramount « Healtr and safety trairning is provides to our stalf and .
irnportance. There s a ns< that contractors on a regular basis. Increased
accidents in the workplaca could
result i serious injury or death
Cyber Security risk: « We emnploy a Chief Information Security Othcer UCISOT)
An attack on cur IT systems and wi e is respons ble far data secunty across the Group and
data could tead to disruptior reports quarterly (o the Board. —_—
of cur operaticns and loss of « The CISO works closely wth cur businesses to ensure o
customer data Loss or misuse adequate standards of security and information No change
of data may result in reputational managemens are mes.

cGamage, reguJlatory acton under + Each of our businesseés that hold custormer data has their
GDFR and potential fines own ded-cated resource for 'T and securty

The sirategic renort was approved oy the Boara of Directors on 16 December 2022 and signed on its behaif oy

PS Latham
Director
16 Decemper 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 172 {1} statement

Trie Board consider that they have adrered fc the
requirerrerts of secuon 172 of tne Companies Act
2006 {the "Act’), and have. ir good faith, a

2 i

way that would be maost likely 1o oromore the
SUCCESS of the Group for the benelt of its members
as a whole thaving regard 10 ali siakehc ders and
et out ir sechor: 172130&-1 of the Act)

in the dECISI ons taker aunng the year enced

20 dJune 2022

Ir the performance of s duty to gromaote the
success of the Group, the Bosre has regard o a
rumber of rmatiers, mcludmg the lxely

consequance of any decisons in the ong erm, and

[ sters 1o the v ews of the Greu takehaders

to buid trust and ensure

S
porental impacts of the decisions it makesz, Tre

Boarc fulfis thewe duties partly by delegatior to
commuittees ard the boards of 5 ubsio‘:ary
undertakings, who operate within a corporate

governange framework across the Greup

At every Board mecting a review of hzalth anc
safety across tne group, imancial and operational
performarce as weil 35 legat and requlatory
compliance, s undertaken The Board aso review
other areas over the course of the Ainancia. year
nc.uding the Grodp's DUsINess srategy, Key nsks,

stakeholder-related matrers, d‘versity and inclusvity,

e vironmental matters, corporate responsibitty, and

governance, complignee and ‘.egau. matters.

Principal decisions
We defne principa! decisions taken iy the Board az
those decisions that are of a stra.eg:c nature a~d

thrat are sigrifican. (C ary cf Sur xey sta<ensider
groups The Board conziger that the folicwing are

examples of zrl.'wcwpal cacsons tmadein the year

endes 30 June 2522

» Fvaiuating a~d cecdrg to move aleas wiin
greasing wnd ogerations, w

vhick 15 part ¢f

3
cur rerewalkles civision, In August 2021 the

Group acguired a large scale, ready 0 construct
Nt

wind site in Australia Ths d@oluy're ali
with the Group's strategy to continue to
develop renewanle erergy sites which provids
predictabie, long-term revenue streams. “he
Board considered the opooruniny and how it

aligred with our ohjectves (o make a pestve

contrbunon o the community and envronment,

Tre Group dec ded o expand into our newest
division, hou

acquired Elivia homes, &

s building In May 2S22 the Grouo
ful-service property
devetoper, providing serv.ces frorn the gesign,
to the engneerirg and then inal construction
to ensure tne delivery of quabty waorkmanshiz.
Drvers ‘ying the Group's asset base and entenng
Mta this ~ew cector has besn wet though

aut with long term growth in mra. The Board
assessed the strategic coportunihies within the
sector before deciding to move ahead with tris
acquisit'on, considering now thig would mpact
exisiing businesses withir the div eon and now

it aligned with the Group's strateg.c o ectives to

devver long-terr value ang predictabie growth
for our shareholders

Reviewing ara decidi~g to move anead wth
increasing biomass operatons which is part of
our rengwables civis.on In Gowober 2021 the

Group acquired a large scale, wastewo-energy
construcion 3. i Sfo:iamd. Tris decloyment
zligns with the

d:versify the Grou
sites wh ch orovid

revenue streams, anc provide resilience agaimsat

< strategy to contnue o
o, develop renewanls enargy
e

predclanie, long-term

o how if augres w.th Our cojecives to

make a sostve conribut.on t& the communty

anea enviranmeant
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Corporate governance

Thre board decided (o Lhung audit frms via 3
tender procass for the year ended 36 June 2022
Tre Greup had changed sigrificantyy

Srevicus auditors were appointed a

snce the
nd therefore

we were unabie o reliaby assess the vaiueé for

Toney we received, Three firms Lnderwent

the ternger groces: and Errst & Young LLP were

selected because of thaer strowg commercial

uncerstanding of our business, efficient audit

r‘re‘.hocology ard value for money
Business strategy

Qur businass strategy 13 32t out O pages
the Strategic “epaort. Management prepares a
detaleg Gre
Board on ari arrual pagis and for

up budget which s approvad by the
ras tne pass for
the Grouo's rescurce piansing and depoyrnent
decisions. 'in ma<ing decsicns concerning the
busmess plan, tre Board nas regara first anc
ategic focus, but alse o cther
the interests of its varnous

staxenclders and the ong-term impact of i
actions on the Grodp's future and reputaiion,
Shareholders

Shareholaer relations and generaung shareholder

value 15 a key conaigeration when the Board 15
making strategic gecsions T ne prirme megium by
wrach the Group communicates witn shareholders
s thraugh tne annual report and financial
staternents, which aim to provide sharehoiders with
a full understanding of the Group's activities and s
results Trus information is publisbed on our welbsite

at www.ferntrading.com

Employees

The Group's employees are fundarmental (o the
overall success of the businazs, The Directors fulfil
their duty 1o employees by entrusting oversight to
subsiciary Boards which the Thef Executive of the
Groun also sits on

The directo
manage the

rs of tne subsidiary undertak ngs
day to day decision making,
engagement and communications with employees

and ersure tnat people are treated fairly and are
valued with rezpect 1o pay, beneft and conditions.
vWe fully realise that our erployees wish to be
informed and consulted on matters affectinrg their

work and 1o be invoivea in protlemi-solving

affecting their cwn areas of irterest and
respons cility, The Group is firmly committed o a

pnolicy of good commurncaton at all evels and we

a0 estahlish A cimate whica cangtantly
z includes monthy team briehngs

the cunlication of maonthiy key
overing oulput, operating

1and sa

Tre reait

ety of our emplo

workplace s a continual focus for tne Group, given
its broad
Health & Safety Reporting at each board meeung to
= aporognate policies and procedures are in
fety of our
employees ard contractors. Whgre there are

operational ousiness The Directars review

ensy,

p%ace 0 protect the heaith and sa

cotendal deficiencies or issues, these are followed
timely bas.s, with the Board
having oversight of the actions taker

up and resolved on &

The Group <
of certamn

Where activities
that they are managed by reputable
meet 3t the relevant industry and regulatory

vites ard nanagement
uerot‘\,mm activines to extarnal suppliers,
are ocutsourced the Board ensures
supphers who

commitments as well ag treating empwyees fairly
Expected standards are documenied in all service
contracts and adherence to these are continually
monritored Ly Board through their service

agreement with Octopus Investmenis Limited

Suppliers and customers
The Group acts in a fair manner with all suppliers
and customers and seeks to maintain sturong
business relamsnsh‘ps with them This is achieved
by all contracts beng negetiated tarcugh a far and
tender process which includes

on the lang-term objecives of

transparent
assessing e impact

dgard

HES L

R
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Corporate governance

tre Group. We review our Rayment process ng
tirmez against
are paid promptly and this mformation for
the cormoary is svailable on the www.gov.uk
weonsite

contracts every six months to ensure
supphers

e Group enswres it acts farrly and in a transparent
manner 1o all customers across all divisons an
services, and actively engages to resolve any ¢

aults The Board closaly

hputﬂ”

MMCNIEOrS Custormer
metrics and engages wiih the management team to
understand the issues if t-usmegs paricrmance does

Aot mest CLSIOMmars expeclanons

Tre Board considers Qcto
0 be a k&

LI Invesirents Lirnng

y DLsiness paftﬂc and zuopuar w th
resporsislity for the nrovision of operatona
oversignr, inancial admonistrehon and comoany
secretanal services

Community and environment

The provision and operaton of susta:nan.e

nfrast-uciure s at the centre of the Group's
suategic goas Through its business actwvit 25 tne
Group seeks o make a positive contrbutan to the

orrrmunity, environment and ecoromy Our

re~ewable energy bosiness is helpirg the UK meet
s renewable energy targets, our privale hesplas
have sucported the NHS througnout the Cowd-19
pancemic by providing treatment for non-Covid-192
¢ HS patients that ctherwise could no- have been
carned cut, 2nd our abre netweork will give people
in rural communities access to hign-sneed
oroadband

Business conduct
Az Directors our rtentorn 1S 1o behave responcby,
rernt Goerate the business with

riegrly and i accordana witn the rgh siarcards

ersurnng manzg

of condust a~d governance expected of a buamess

sach as ours. Our inte~tion threwghn our business

strategy (cutiined on pages L2 to 14118 to operate 1
sectors and work with other businesses that share

2ur values

Business ethics and governance

The Board 1z responsibe for ensunng mat tre
acivities o tne G'oup ard its varous businesses ae
conducted in compeance with tre law and
applicable goverrance and regulatory regimes, ano
in adrerence wita prevaling vest pracnce for the
relevant industry This inciudes reviewing inernal
conols, ensuring that there is an appreonate
balance of

card, ang ansJunnag that the Gnarcial statemrents

skells and expe-ience represerted ©n the

grve a truc anc fair view of tne state of afairs of the
Giroup, Furtiher detail can be found n the stalement
af diractors respors brlil es

io %0

A page 29 Inihe year
Jure 2072 no areas of corcern

flagged in tnis regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Tre 3oard's policy on empioyee, human rignts,

icy

s discJssed

saClal ana corrmunity iSsuUes, envrarment ool

nd anu-corupnon and bricery matters

n e Drectors Report on page 29 1he Boar
actively promees a cotporate culiare thatis b sed

o ethical values and behaviours
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Group finance review

Beaview of Hnanclal statements

The purpose of this recort is 1o provide acdibora
explanatory inforrmanon an the inancial statements 2

rmeasuring our parformance, the financiat
e Include those that have been

rregiuras that we us

deriven from our reported reselis in order to :
elirirzie factars that distor: year-on-year

compansons. These are considered non-GAAZ

finarca, measl.res

Areconcilation cf these (o the financ-al results can

be founa in note 28 of the notes o the fnang al

ctaterments

srow assets at cost, as such
e value tngt we expect o

To that extert

The fnarcal statements
they do not reflect the

derive from these bﬁm S5es
ray differ materialty from

accounting performance m

trie share crice ana may Not

full marker va.ue of ass

the Grodp.

the

A number of acquisitions were mase dunng

year, including nine operational reserve power sites,
a waste o energy site under construction, a
construction ready wind farrmn Austraba ang
clar roofton sites under construction
Shartly after tha year end, in July 2044, we sold

n Adstrass.

seventeen s

alarge soiar s

Darlington Poant

To supoort cont rued expansion, we had owlt up
cast reseryes at year end of £256m whicn mnclude:

of £97m from placing externa:

alarge casn inflow

refrancing n Darlirgicr Point pnoro sae

(restated) Movement

2022 2021

£000 £000 £'000 %
Pf *ﬁt flo:sz bf~ ore lax 7 45’,664 (22 663) - 7C-,-267 5 0%
Lenaing boolf "wﬁ-t of DTOV\V.)VMV)T;I;JW 360901 385 512 - -(-2-4-,6-3-11J 6%}
Cash o 256,415 172,478 T
Mer dobt 793,169 699,440 137
’:\49" as ;ﬁrs 7 N 7 2,5.‘.:9;44‘8‘ - 1,887,842 - ) -33] F-(‘ - ‘lé%

Financial performance
Overali, the Group has repo
F476m for the year ende
£70.3m improvement or tne
E2d7mic
8/% 10 £195m
primarily due t
erergy prices

ted a proft before tax of
3 0 June 2022 which 15 3
pricr year (2221
g5 restated). Overall CRITDA ircreased by
(2021, £104m restated), which is
cncreasaed energy generation as wel

as increased

Reveriue increased by £287m to L712m (2021

‘Earrings before interest, tax, cepraciation and amrcriisation

£4257) wh ch was predominantly driven by a 84%
increase in revenue within our energy divisior, This
growtn is two fold, ircreasen energy generaton
from having owned/operated ane of our biomass
plants for the full year and a large sofar plantir
Australa reaching commissioning; and a sigrificant
INCrease in average energy prices cver the year due
to tre misrnatch between supply and demand,

exacerbated by the cngoing conflict in Ukraine
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Revenac growl was sirongest In aur energy

division but we aisg

aw 2 markeg improvement Hal
ravenue from our relrerent vil L.gpg Tris pars of
cur business has reboundes well from re

lockdowns requires by the Covid-19 pandem.c
respense, selling 41 urits in the year (an ircrease o
22%rand an incraasng N revenue of £7.5m 1o

£20.4m (2021 £12 7m.

Revenue frorm our lending division saw a drop of
25% 1 £42rn (20210 £57rr) due 10 a srraller average
lzan ook over the yesr as cash was made avaiiable

to grow other parts of tme business

Operaung e ises for the year were .n Ling with

Cur expactations, with the

crease phrnanty doven

by nereased oparating Cosis N Our dbre drasier

it has excanded, Refnancng sexiea) ded! o

secure impreved terms over the past two vears has

contnbuted to a decrease ir intergs:

o B33 6m (2021 £38 1m)
included in tma resuitt this vear s g profit of £258
recognsed o the sale of two wind
and & rea.zation of £1.6m of deferred cons deration

SOl N p(gwo wears

Financial position

Cecninued shareholder nterest ard nvestrrent Ras
seen ret assets grow o L2 219m (2021 21.888m

restated! e 2022, we
issued 120 shares | 23‘)1 l:'um for & totsl

consiaeratan of £204m (2021 £2,217m). The

RAr NUrIDers ‘r'\r_'tude £1,993 of

In the year endec 30 Jun

srparatve
to

¥
consicerat on relating 1o group resiructuning

of E808r (2021, £663m: restaled)
have ncreased by £145m, reflectng the reductior in

Net current assets

external frnariing and an increase in work in crogress
weitmin the Abre a-d house owidirg dwvisions Gur oar

b” 0% 0

Cash and cash eguiva.erts as a2 30 June 2022 were

a
2021 £272m) Casr generatec from

ffarms in Finland

™ 2021

ngside axterna:
long-terrm franaing a ed by rew share
1zsues to grow the ousiress We nave invesied
subctantalty into the fibre broactard sector cver

the past four years wrich wil regaire furtrer caoital
expencitire Gver the next 3-5 years, increasing our

diversification aoro

fthe cash held at year erd
our energy, home ouliding and

where there are a rumper of constry

mnirastructare proecrs under way, requinrg cash to
be reacily avalabie for stage payments due N the
raonihs afler year end.

Goodw I, at E54Lm (2022 L5670 res-ates],
contnues to be a s.gniccart nurmber on the
balance sheet and arises on the aoquicinon of some

Acqumc—c‘ businesses, far exarnpie

renewable energy sites, ofien Have a market value
Im excess of the company’s net assets, reflectira
eir relabe fularc income streams. AcCCounting
corvennon requires that orly identfiable assets are
ramed on the balance sneer s he accouns
cannot record the balance of the additicnal market

vawe whicn comprizes tha future orofts that stes

ected to deliver The addiionat value n

5 of the value of fixed assets ‘hemselves (sucn

35 soiar panels) 1s recogrised as goodwill

Put simpty, the market va.ue of the energy

generaton busresses [ori

6]
4
3
2
]
T
(o
wij
3
Z
<
o
fis
v
T W
a
3
&

busiresces) reflects the valde of future expeciea
profits, not the cost of amoly buyindg tangidie azserns
such s sciar panels o7 wind turbines, We pay
ma~et velue ferthe s
exceed tre va Le of identhable

€5 we acod re, whieh may

m

which

solar pareis and 30 generates gocde”.,
essentally represents the vawe Gf tre sxoected
future incorre streams Goodwell recogn sed wis
gradually be wnuen off, tyoically over the bfe of the

site, as expected returrs are realised
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Sector performance

Energy

As economic activity and global demand increazed
throughout the yea-, so too did wholesale energy
prices, driven by movemnents in commaodity prices,
which resulted in the averzll inciease in revenue
earned across QuUr energy sites These market
factors have resulted Ir an Increase 1N reven.de of
BA% to £593m 12821 £3727m!

Corespondingly, ERBITDA alzo ircreased by 112% to
E£266rm (2021 £126m restated) reflecting e
significant increase in energy revenie. Cveral total
operatng costs increased by £3130mto £327m

(2021 £196m restated], partizliy driver by ncreased
se costs where £120m was incurred at Qur
biomass sites and £83m a1 our reserve power tites,

the prizes for raw maienals have increased, on

Toaverage, by 69% cue to an ncrease iri the supbly
Pocosts The combined cost of sales for the reserve
! power and biomass sites increased oy F110m to

E217r (2021, 107m) it should be noted that the
revenue generated by the Dicmass and reserve
power sites ncreased by £192m durng the year to
E353m (2021 EI61m)

FY2022 Fyazoz1 FY2022 FY2021

Production Production External External

{MWh) {MWh} Availability Availability

Lardhll Gas 240,226 256,026 97.9% 97 €%

Reserve 2awer 403,355 141 (86 94.2% 92.0%

Solar 554,858 517012 97.7% 596 0%

Wi 851,214 881.241 90.5% 93 1%
Total 3,099,690 2,682,019 -
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Healthcare

Healthcare cperat ors contributed £46m

(2021 £42m; o Group revenues for the year
reflecting the impact of ncreased revenue In
Rangeford. Sales of apartments at the retirerrent
Yillages have renounded well from tre iockdowns
required by the Cowid-19 pandemic response,

seling 41 urits in e year (an increase of 52% from
2021 and increasn
(2021 £127m)

5
G revenue by £76m 1o £20.2m

Lending
Revenue from lenaing decrezsed by £14m to £42m
(2021 €7m prisnarily due o a smaller average

loan book for 2022, which resuited ina d
revenue stream for the year, The ot o

reducec by £% (0 £361m at the year erd {
£I86m) This redacton in the loan boox enables
cash 1o be available “or opporiunities across cther

sectors withun the Group including acquisitions and

construction. The maxe-up oF

shifted sligntly where we hiz
numiber of smaler loans within the resigenua.
sector, aswell as more arger loans in the

ae
development sector and the ommercia’ secior

EB.TDA far the lending divisicn decreased o a toss
of £& /rm from a orofit of nearty 21 n the prios

vear Thism
the loan ook against [oans (o reserve powcer sites

overment reflects a orovision of EZ5m n

and & provision

acainst a nealtbcare lcar o L4

neyear to Jure 2022, 29 was

provided
againsticane versus E21min tie onior year

=

Fibre

5.
are . thie bulld phase ana are crartim:: 0 add

n

cusmemrers to ther retworks By 20 Jure 2022, the

divizon nad owld pa

anticicate tre build

=
5
&
¢
)
5
[
&:
a
D
[at}
o
(¢
<
&)
J
I
m
[
£
1§,
<
o
T\
ﬂ

¢ dvivon also incurs large ogerat ng exparrses as the
i busnesses scale their operatiors and develog
Iomacket presence Oversll tre d vision regorted ar
ER TDA woss of £55.4r {2021 £23 5m loss), which
15 in line with exgectations and refiects the
developrmental stage of the division

As we buld these
recogrised o the balance

networks cun, the asses will be
shieet at cost which
cannotircude future valde which 1s excected o be
generated zs the a s have beer inernally
generated. This | J ‘fe Lo the share price where
tra fture vawe e:<oec:ed o De generated from tre

assets 15 ncluded

Home building
Elivia Hornes was ac

nerefore hed drmited impact on the finarcia:

quoired in May 2022 arc nas

perforrmance ducng the year, The Dusiness 1s

forecast to deliver £78m revenue and £5 5m

EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2027 Results
from the frst guarter of 2023 indicate the business

Hal

is proadly perforrin INE Wit expectat ans

funding and liquidity

Cur strategy 's 1o secore long-tery Fnancing at
conservative evels frort mamsirear banks to
enhance 2urms from our renewable energy

5. At year end we bad £1.042m of
externgl groject finarcing with Z441m of

Cusimresse

- o
at.e

Fiead -oom avala

Trus enablas Ls to acquire businesses that ¢
market consxiers 1o have stalkie characiensics such

as predictable cost pase, reven.ae sireams,

ase
goveriment incentives or proven tecrnology and as

wch have lower returns that without ieverage waould

pe rsuffcent for our sharerolders. 1t aiso aliows Us

our cusinesses and managing

flax’bil iy 12 financirg

cash flow We believe that ‘a'ling o adopt the

i strategy wolld nave a ne ga tve Imgact on ousiness
i return and sharenoicer valde over the ong term.
Approximratey 80% of our nterest pavable is fixed

P oard therefore we are not igrnhcanily exposes 1o

é
i
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the current interest rate volatility, We cont.nually
review firancing arrangemrents to ensure t1at they
are comeettive and ochimised for the needs of the
business. To ensure cash is rmanaged in an agile
rmanrer, we mainain a flexible fnance facility
which can be drawn down o7 repad to mee:
immed ate busness needs

Looking ahead

The Groun has rebounded well from the effects of
the Covid-19 panderric ard has outperformed
expectaiions, Whilst the current econoimic outleo<
s one of crallenge and ancerta.nty, we articipate
rIriTE. mmeact On our resus due to e
gredictable revenue strearns and cost base, and
essentiai nature ¢of our actvities. Codpied with the
diversificaticn we have built up across the business,
we are positoned strongly for these turbulent
times anead

We continue to pay parucular attenticn o tne twn
challenges of rising Interest rates and surging
nflaticn — both i termns of lending and portfolo
management. These trerds impact all areas of the
Grous's business and are Ukely to remain for the
foreseeab e future, s we remain disciplinad in our
investmert aporoach, continuing 1o montor the
situatior: carefully and taking a prudert approach to
any current and emerging risks.

We are positive about the continued opportunity
for growth andg cortinue o beueve that the
business is positioned wel to take advantage of
future growth coportunities across its Core busingess
areas. tnergy, lending and haouse ouilding
coerations are well establishies ir the market and
continue o make excellent progress with robust
performances in the new financial year. in ine with
oLr planned strategy, since the yeas end we sold a
targe solar farmn Australia for a smal profit, with
proceeds being redeployed 1rto new opporiunities

Ceployment irto fiore cont nues to roll cut in tne
ed

€

with expectations and tre Groug has now pass
50,600 homes by our fibre networks.

[

recre than
Sates activity Ir our healthcare divizion rermans
strong, with nearly 40% of anrual sales budget

already completed or reserved across al sites as at
the end of Sectember

Arrounced within the auturnn statement as part of
the 20232 Firange Bl the UK Government will
ensct a 45% winafal levy 'Electriaity Generator
Levy” or "EGL} on wholesale energy market
revenues in excess of £79/MWh Th's is expected ©
aoply to the Groug from 1 January 2023 to 31
March 2028 The exact legislation will be published
in reid-December 2022, but pased on the initial
relezse an impact aralysic nas been cerformed

as at 30 Septernper 2022, We estimate the impact
to be a drop n valuaton of approximately £45m
for the sites affected, which cortnouea 1o a

2 0p decrease in the share price to 177.0p 10
Cecember 2022

We expect to generate strong operatrg returns
from cur esabished divisions for the coming years,
in addition to the anticipated outflows for our
censtruction phase assets ~ he healthcare and
fibre divisions are well intc their bu:lc chase in line
with our lorg-term strategy and we anticioate
strong returns over the rext five (¢ seven yea's

upon maturity

PS Latham
Director
1€ December 2022

o

Lt
i
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present thelr report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

For a surnmary of the Group's r

re
Group fnance review on page 235

\’D

The directors have not rec
vidend (2021, ENil).

omrrended paymen: of

RS

Tre directors of the Company who weie in office
h

dunng the year ano up o the date of sgning t
fnancial staterents were!

PS Latham
KJ Willey

PG Baro

=

tre Noftes 1o (ne financial

L DR o ot i .

D
o]

Refer to the Strategic Reoort on psy

Rafer to tre Strategic Report on page i,

Refer to the secior 172 staremient on page 22

The Grou
managerrent including infarration o the

s opjechives and policies on financial risk

exposure of the Group te credit risks, bguidity reks
and market rizks are set cut in nete 21 to the
fFrancial statemerts The Groug's prncipal rsks are

set out in the strafegic report on page 16

As perrmittoa by section 4.4c (111 of the
Act 2056, the d rectors have glected 10 QSCI@ =

Smpanies

imformaton required 10 Le in the direclors report

by Scredule 7 of the Large ard Mecium-sized

Corrpanies and Group: [Accounrts anc Repors)

Reqgulauons 2008, n the stratagic report

v

The Seara recognises that s corporate culture
based on scund ethical values and benaviours s an

ssat The Grous erdeavolurs o conductits

a
bus ress wah iriegrity, man e professiona:

and resgonsbie manner, realing our employees,
Csunpilets and partres welk couriesy
and resgect

Appacetons for ermnployrient by disanied pers
are gven ful' and far cons derauer for all

vacancies, raving regard (o tner sarucuar aptitude

[

and ab; lties S—oulc a cerzon b

while ntre Gro

ecome disabled
un’s employment, every effcrts
rmMade G retam e in emo.oyment, gvirg

sltermat-ve raiming as necessary
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D e g

We fully realise that our emeloyees wisn o Le

nformed and consutted on matters affecting ther

ved in problem-solving affecting
nsiblty

work and to be inve
their own areas of interast and resgo

The Grouo is “rmly commitied (o a policy of good
commiuricaton at all leve's and we aim to astaplish
a climate which constantly encourages the ooen
esantly this

gs at a ocal level and

flow of informnation af.d deas, P
includes mantrily eam brefr
the publication of monthly key serformance
ncicators Costs and

coverrg autplt, operating

neaith and safety.

The Grous has 1m place ar agreement witn Octopis
Imvestments Lirmited to grovide services o the
Group covering operational oversight,
adminiztration, company secretar al and cormpany
accounitg

The Beoard acoptea a formal environmreantat, social

and corporate governance ("ESGT oolcy on
30 September 2020, Tne Group recognises e

reed o conduct iis pusiness, ‘N a manner that is

responsiole to the enviccmment, wherever po t

As a low ene gy user, the Company has elected not
10 disciose data on its energy and carbon usage.
Fern Trading Limited is the only Comgary in the
Group that meets the reporting criteria and
therefare no informaton is provided for the Group
as a whaole

The Groue's has an Anti-Bribery Policy which
ntroduced robusat procedures o ensure full
complance with the Bribery Act 2010 and o ensure
that the highest standards of professionat ethical

conduct are maintamed.

iN gccordance with te recommendanons of “he UK
Corporate Governarce Code, the Board has
considered the arrangements in place 1o encourage
staff of the Group or manager of thie Group tC raise
concerrs, in confidence, wilhin tneir organisat'on
about possible impropaeties .n matters of financial
report.ng or other matters

arrangertents are in place t ailow ar indegendent

It 15 satisfied that adeguae

nvestigation, and folow-on actior where necessary,
to taxe place within the organisation

s

We are cormm tted 1o acting ethically anc with

integrity -n all our pusingss dealirgs snd

reiatonships ard o irmolementing and enforaing

1o ensure maodern
slavery s net takng place anywhers 1 our own

effective sysiems and cortrols

business or 1 any of ns, censistent
with aur obligations under the Moden Slavery Act
2015 We expect the same high standaras from all

our supply cha

of our contractors, suppiiers and othe
partners. As par! of cur contracling processes, we
expact our suppiers to comoly with the Mo
Slavery Act 2015

The directors are responsible for prepanng the
Anriual Report and tne financial statements in

accorgance with appi'cable law and requlaticn

ompary iaw requires the directors to prepare
ﬁnar al staterments for each finarcial year. Under
tral aw the directors nave prepared the Group ana
Compary financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generaily Accepted Account:ng
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
caomprisng “RS 102 "The Financial Regoring
Standard applicable in tre UK ana Republic of
Ireland’, and applcable taw). Urnder company law
the directors must not approve the financial
statements urless they are sausfled that they give a




i
]

3| GOVERNANCE

Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

true and fair view of the state

of affars of the Group
and Company and of the pront or loss of the Group
and Comgany for that period. In oreparing the
financial statements, the direciors are reqgured to

« select sutable accounting p es and then appiy

therm consistently

= stze whether applicable Urited K'ngdom
Accounhtng Standards, commprising FRS 102, have
beer followed, subject to any matenal departures

disciosed and explained in tne ﬁrwancwak

.
-

nake judgements and accountng estmates that
are reasonatle and przdert and

« prepare the ingrcal staterrents on the gong
concen Dass urless it s inappropriate o
nresurme t‘rwat the Graup ard Corrpany wil
CONHNUE I DUSIES

Tne directors are aso resporetle for safeguard'ng
t- ¢ assets of the Groun and Comcany and Fence
for taxing rea<onaole steps for the preventcn anrd
cewection of fraud and other rregularntie

The directors are respons ble for keepng adecuate
ouUNuNg records tnat are suficient to show ana
explain tne Group and Cornpany’s trarsaciicrs and

disclose with regsonable accuracy at anyt mea the
friancal posinen of the Groun ard Company and
enakle them to ens.are that the financial staterrents
comiply wiih the Comoanics /\ct 2008

The directars are rasponsible for the maintenance

and iregriy of the Cempany's wessite Legsaton

ir the Unitea Kngdorm goverring the oreparanon

and dssemnation of Anandia. statements may differ

fromr lezislatior i cther junsd.ctions

As perm tted by tre Articles of Aszac ation, the
directors have e beneft of an incemeity which is
3 qualifying third-party inderanity orovision as
defired by Secr,im 234 of the Compan’es Act 2006
The indemrity was in force throughout the last
fnancial year and s currently in force

n the case of each direcor .n ofice at t-e date the
Cirectors’ Report s approved

35 far g8 the director 1s aware, trere 5 no relevant
audit informauon of which the Groun and
crapany's auditors are ungware, and

« they have taken g = that they cught

to have takan a5 a crector in order o make
therszelves awsre of any ralevant auat
nformaticn 2nd 0 estaclisn that the Group and
Companry's auditcrs are aware of that irformation.

Th s confirmat or & gwven and smould pe inerpreie
naccordance witn the provsions of section 418 o

re Companies Aot 260

2]

Tmat & ‘w’ouﬂg _LF naving been apoointad 1in 2027,
have inaicated trarr wilingnass o e reappoinied
far a~oiher term and wil be progosed for re-
appo.ntment in accardance wih section 485 of the
Compan'es Act 2006,

The Cirectors’ recort was aporoved by the Board of
Directors on 186 December 2022 and s gned on its
benalf oy,

PS5 Latham
Sirector
16 Decemper 2022
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinlon
We have audited the financ al statements of Fern
Frading Limited U'the Farent Company’) and s
subsidiaries (the 'Group’) for the year ernded 30
June 2072 which comnrise the C-roup Staternent of
Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parert
Compsny Balarce Sneet, the Gr oup Staternent of
Casn Flows, the Group anc Parent Statement of
Charges ir Equity and the related notes 1 to &9
ncluding a surnmary of significant accounting
oolicies. The financial reporing frafr ework that has
Deen aptied v ther preparaticn 1z applicable law
and Un
;ndudihg FRS 102 ‘he

ed Kirgoom Accourtng Standards
- nancial Reportirg
Stardard applcabie in the UK and =Sepublic of
Iraland” (Unired Kngdorn G
Accounting Practice],

Generaly Accepted

In our opinicn, the financ al statements:

s gveatrue and f
FParent Company's affairs az af

ar view Of the Group's and of the
20 June 2022 and

of the Group's profis for the year ther ended,

= have been properly prevared in accoraance with
Jrited Kingcom Generally Accepted Accaounting

Practice; and

« have been precared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2005,

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit i accordance with
Interrational Stancgards on Auditrg (UK (1SAs (UKD}
and applicable law Our responsibilities under those
standards are further descr bed in the Augitor's
rasponsinilities for the audit of the financial
statements secuon of our report We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the
ethical reguirements that are relevant 1o our 2J4dit of
the financial staternents in the UK, mcluding the

RC's ~thical Standard, and we have fuifilled our
other ethirzal responsicilities in accordance with
these reguirements.

1 ;ﬂ N

nce we have
provide 2

We beligve that the audit evide
obtained is sufhcient and appropriate to

pasis for our opIrion,

ting (o going congern
3 ncial staternents, we have

Cuuded mat the directors’ use of the goirg

c =15 of account ng in the preparation of

the Francia. statements is appropriate

Based o1 the work we have perforrred, we nave

not identifed any rnaterial uncertamties relating w
evenis or corditons that, individually or moi ely,
Mmay ¢33t s grifcant douct on the Sroup and Parent

Comrpany's abilly 1o continue as a going concarm
for a penod of twelve rnonths from when the

financial staterrents are autnonsed for issue,

Gur responsibilties and the responsio lives of

trie direciors with respect to going cancern
are descriced n the relevant sections of this
repcrs. However, because not al future events or
condtors can be predictec, this statement s not a
guarartes as 1o the Grouap's apivty o contirue as a

gong concern,

Other information

The other information comprises the nfarmation
nciuded ir: trie annual report, othér taan thie
financial statements and cur auditor's report
thereon The directors are responsible for the other

mformation contaired within the annual report

Cur opinion or the financia: sietements does not
cover the other information and, except to the

extent otherw'se exphcitly stated n ihis repost, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion

tnareon.

Cr responsibility 5 10 read the otner information
and. in doing so, consider wrether the other
inforrmation is matenally 'nconsistent with the

fnancial staterrents ar our x1owledge cbtained in
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

of the acdn
materally misstated I we

the course ar otherwise apoears 1o e

e identify such matena

imconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,

we arc required to determine whginer this gives rise
2Nt In the financia:

naelves. |

2 aratenal mosstatem
statemonis them © baszed on the wors we
have perforred, we conclude that there s 3

mater.al misstaremer:. of the otrer information, we

are required o repori that fact

We have nothing 1o report in this regard

Cpintons on other matbesy presoribed
by the Companiey Act 2006

oinion, based

-
=

In our o on the ywork underta<en

ne ocourse of the audit

s the information gven in the Stratenq.c report and
the Directors’ report (or the financ-al year for
which the inancial statercents are preparad g

conssient win the financal staermrents, and

= tihe Strateqic report ang Dreciors’ report neve
Ceen prepa-ed in accordarce w th applicanle

egal requirements

Matters on which wa
report by exceplion

@ poaaired to

In the hght of the knowledge &~ rstandng of
the Group and the Sarert Company and s
Srvironmen obfa ned in the course of tne audit,
we have not idertified material r ant

the Sora

tegic repart of D!rectcrs' raport

We have nothing to repct in respect of the
following matters in relaiwon to whicn e
Comparies Aot 2006 requires L to report o you L

i our ooition:

« adecuaie accourting records rave not

O returns adequare for our
received from branches not visited by Us! or

s the Parent C or‘ﬁpar' N

P e
I agre Uwith the 2cc

returns, or

« certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration

specifiad By law are not made, or

- we have not recaves sl the information and

parations we rega e for our audit,
Hesponsibilities of divegtors

As explained rrore fully i the Directors’
responsibil:t
30 the Drrectors arc responzible for the preparation

es staternent set cul on pages 29 ana

o the fnancizl staterrents and for beng satislied
mat they gve a true ard fair vew, and “or such

riterna, control as the Directa s deter~unea .
rnecessary 1o endbie the creparation of fnancia,
statemerts @ from maeral

atars f

rsstateent, whaetter dus to fraud ar aror

Ir prepa-rig the financial staiements, tae Direclors

are resoensidle for assessirg the Grouo's and the
Farent Company’s ab lity to continde as a going
concermn, disc

) goirg concer ang using the g

closimg, as applcable, matiers relatea
Qoing corcen
the Directors cither

basis of accourtng unlkess t

rtend o iguidate tne Group or ihe Paren:
Company or 1o ccase operatons. or have no
reglistc slerratve out tc do sc

Auditor's rasponsibilities for the audit
of the fnancial statamenis

are ta oblain reasonatle assurance

1 wMN0le

he financia; starernants 3

aterial misstatement, wnetrar due
rid O 1ssue an audinor’s report
ropnon Reascnabie assurarce 12
e, butis not a guarantes that
ed (n accordance with 15As UK

tatenert when it

assuranc

a hign levet of

2N aud * corduct

will always detect 2 mater al mis

e from fraud or erro
or1m the

could reasonacly oé expected (o

ex'sts, Micstatemants can ans

~sigereq matenat |, indreduslly

ardare oo
aogfegate they -

riluence tre economic doosions of users taken o

tire bacis of these finarg

5 slatemenrts,

{
1
(
|
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as o what extent the
audit was considered capabla of
detecting irregularities, including
fraud
Irregularties, includ.ng fraud, are irgtances of non-
compliance with laws and regulatons. We design
procedures i ling witn odr resgponsibilities, outlined
avove, to detect irregularities, (-¢luding fraud. The
risk of not detecting a material msstatenent due "o
ud is higher than the risx of not detecung one

lve deliberate

resuitmg frorn error, as fraud may invo
concealmert by, for example, forgery or interticnal
rmisrepresentations, or through ccllus'cn The
exter” to wrich our grocedures are Capacle o°
=teCting rregularities. ncluding fraud s defailea
hetow Aowever the primary responsiciety for the
=vertior and detection of fraud rests witn botn
those chargea with governance of the entity and

managemet
Chur approach was as follows

« We obtamed
regulatory framewarks that are applicable (o the
Group and determined tha

an understanding of the legal anc

T tne most sigmificant
are those that relate to reporung framework (FRS

102 and the Cormrparnies Ac: 4006)‘

« We underztood how Fern Trading Limited iz
those frarneworks Dy making
enguiries of rranagement, charged with
gcvernance and those responsibie for tegal
procedures as to any fraud risk

COMPYINg wit

those

and complance
framewcrk wathin the entity, Including whether

a formal fraud risk assessment is completed. We
corrcoorated cur enguiries throdgh review of the
foliowing documentation or performance of the

following wrocedures:

entity-level
e of the

« obtainng an urderstasdng ©
controls ard considering the influenc
cortrel envirconment;

= obtainng an understanding of policies and
in place regarcding compliance
and reguiations, includ ng how

procacures

with laws

compixance with such policies iz monitored

r:q art understanaing of
s for |dmt|‘y ng and

crced; obtain

mamagememt 5 Droce

conirols estaplished to aadress fisks
inentfizd, or ctherwise prevent, deter and
detect fraud, and how senior rranagement
monitors those prograrns and controls;

ooard mee

igirg

o review of NG rnindtes in the pericd

and up (© date of ¢

ents to matenal misstate
incluging how fraud rr‘lgr Wt aoour py heildn
audit r2am which nclu d d

financal state

discussion withn
« gensfication of related parties,

« Lrigerstandng the Group's business, the

contro. ervironment and assessing ihe irhearent

risk for re.svant asseriions at the sign:ficant
accodrt Levet nclucing discussions with
gain an undersianding of

re firancial statements which

ranagerrers
thiose areags of ¢
were siisceptible to fraud, as identified by

ranagement, and

« considered the controls that the Group has
red 1o address risks idenshed by

e seek 1o prevent,

esta
the entity or that otnerwis
deter cr detect frand nciuding gsinimg an
understanding cf the entity leve, cortrols anc

palcies that the Group applies

+ Based on this understanding we desgned our
a.dt procegures o entify non-cocmpliance
with such laws and regulations Our procedures
invelved testing ¢f journat entres througn

journal analytics tools, with facus on mangal

nsmzmn

el
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e
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,

if any. with the relevant licensing or requlatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

T N

Loty T
EEE R I I G T i

This report is made sotely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 1& of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁm«@:&% j\z__L_P

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor}

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the year ended 30 Juns 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
Note £‘000 £°000

B B i LITAL L R e > b N RN 5 o0 OB R e SR DR A B

Turnover 1 711,830 425,302
( o5t Of faes (4190,883) (2?1 277‘

Gross profit 300,947 204,025
77777 (258,251 | (231844)

Operat:ngproﬁtl{!oss) S 2 42,696 (27.819)
Otror isgore 1 3,550 G454

A(‘mm'

ncome from atner fixed asset investimeants 5,249 449
Share of operating profit in joint venture - 1,755

Frofit on disposal ¢f sulsidaries and jont vanture & 29,533 28,568

Citmer interest recewable and similar iIncome 5] 130 G577
rerest pay qolc Elpegt m ar “h::'g 5] {33,554) (55,067}

Prohtl(loss) before taxatlon S S 47,604 (22,663}
\ax - QrOf"I/'l"" 5\1 7 {16.294) f 349

Pl’Of‘ltI(lOSS) fOl’ the ﬁnam:lai year”-ir" o "“"“" o 31,310 (31012)

Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27.005;
Minority interest (6,622) (4.007;
31,310 (31.012)

All resuits elate 10 continung aclivites Note 26 detalls the pnior period agjustments
Group statament of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021

SEANY L aamiE & maio. § ShiPs ﬁroon E'OOO
Profit/{loss) for the financial yeal; R o 31,510 (31.012}
Other comprehensive income S S
Moverrents in casn flow hedges 77.985 44,983

Fore 1gn excharge (*aw l ssion retranslation of ,L;?Jblmafle; 13 561 (333)

Other cornprehensrve income for the year ) 96,546 44 650

Total comprehensive income for the year 127,856 13 638

Attributable to

* Qwners of the parent 134,478 17645
* Non-controlling interests (6,622) (4 007)
“ o 127 856 S 13 638




AL STA

S 30 JUNE 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
MNota N £°000 o £'000
F]xec\fw;ssats R— . e AT g g £ 2R A T A
Irtargble asscts 8 557,708 576,729
Tangible azsete El 1,893,430 1581682
Irvestrnants 10 35,452 11,000
- 2486590 2160421
Current assets S
Stocks 12 184,479 94,711
Bebtors tncluaing £138m 2021 £16 1m; 3 623,161 598,002
Gué Fter more than one yoarn
Cash at "ur\k ﬁd nohand 1" 256 415 172,478
o o B 1 064 055 8;6‘5:‘191
Credltors amounts faltlng due wsthm one year iﬁ - (256 152) (20-‘2“,6;59)
Net current as;é; “““““““ S 307 903 N 667:{3/
Total assets less current liabilities 3 294 493 T2 832,553
Credstors amounts fallmg due after more than one year 15 (992 425) (903,239)
Provustons for !lab 'ttes S 17 (82,620)" o (41,3724
Net assets ) -Z:é19,448 S 1(587842
Capital and reserves
Called up share camita: 12 161,662 145,676
Snare prermilm account 364,882 173118
Mergor rasene 1,635,569 1440757
Clash flew hedge reserve 63,006 (14,573}
Frofira-d 955 arcoun’ {2,770} 136,049
Total Shareholders funds ”2,222-,34'9 ‘ 1,884112.1
P»orw Ccm rolirg nierests R (2 901) 2721
Capltal ernployed 2 219 448 1.88/842

Note 25 detalls the pri

These consolidated finarncia: statemenrts an o

6 Decenber 2022 4

PS Latham

e oy

or per od adjustm

2= -~
ades o7 Re: G2

a~d are s gned con therr behalf by

Regisierag rumber 126016325

were aoproved by the Board of drectors
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Company batance sheet a3 at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
£000  ....E000

BB AR D B AR AR R AT E GRS B DT S R PR R AT A B RAY B HE VA 5 T D b Tl et ey £ b e

Fixed assets
Investmer:s 10 2,539,978 2,116,366
2,539,978 21163646

Currentassets

Debrars 13 39,888 50,383
Cash at bark and inhand 11 6,422 523

' - ' - ae30 51906

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 {449) (22.924)

Net current assets 45,861 28982

Total assets less current liabilities 2,585,839 2145348
Netassets S 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves

Cauea up share capital 13 161,662 149676
Share prem L account 364,882 173118
Mearger reserve 1,986,457 1791145
Proft and loss accourt 72,838 31409

Total sharéﬁdéders’ fundsw

The Company nas elacted o fake tne exempton under secton 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not to
present tie Company proht and loss account. The profit for the financizl pencd dealt with i the fimancial
statements of the Company was £236,742,000 (2021 loss of £157.504,000;

These firancial statements or: pages 35 to 92 were aporoved by the Board of directars on 26 December 2022
and are signed on ther behail by:

PS Latham
Director
Registered nurmber 12601238
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Group statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called up Shara Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders” interest (restated)
{restated} {restated) funds
{restated)
E£'Q00 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 E'000
2020 .jl e 138435 - 1635,569 63,837) 121,185} 1668982 9,570 1,678,552
Pricr oenad % a7s 13828 17703 - 17703
adjustments it 26} . - & - 47 .
- 1635569 159,962} 127.35€) 1686.685 .57 1,696255
- - - (27.0C5) {27.008) (4,007 {31,012}
- - 44983 - 44,983 - 44983
- - - {3I3} 1333) - 1333
sicdianes
Otrmer copy.orerens| e
[ tsaatrats 20 [ - - - 44983 (225) 44,650 - 44 650
eiperse for i yo - - 44983 127.338) 17,645 {4007 13,638
resiatad:
- - - - 1831 1,831 (1842 (1)
- - {195,312 - 195312 - - -
11685 173118 - - - 184,803 - 184,802
(444) - - - 16.299) 16,843} - 16,843)
5051 fresearadi 14367¢ 173118 1440,257 (14.579I 136,045 188421 3721 1887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 {restated] 149,676 175,118 1,440,257 (14,979} 136,049 1884,121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6,622) 31,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Hon- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds

£'000 E'000 £'000 E'000 E'000 E£'000 £000 £000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/(expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622} 127,858
the year
Utilisation of merger _ _ 195,312 _ (193,312} - _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 11986 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 2,770} 2,222,349 {2,901} 2,219,448

Note 26 detaiis the prior genod adustirents

Company statement of changes in equily for the year ended 30 June 2622

Called Share Merger Profit Total

up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’

capital account account funds

o o £:DOO - ) £000 E'000 £'000 £°000

E:alance:atmcorporanon“ P S S - . -
Loss for the financial year . - - - ) (1575[}43 WMM(lSWI"éO;)W

Utilisation of merger reserve - - {195,312} 185,312 -
Total comprehensive income . - h (19;5312} T 37808 157&04

Shares issued during the year 150,120 173118 1986457 - 2,309,695

Shares cancelled during the year (444} - - 15,395) {6,843}
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149676 73118 791,145 31,409  2,145348

Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741

Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -
Total comprehensive income - 195,312 41,420 236741

Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750

Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1986457  72.838 2585839
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Group statement of cash flows foy the yvear anded 20 June 2022

Naote 2022
Cashflmows frqm ol;;:a‘t;;g - mt.es s g £ . Sy
Proft/lloss for tre financ.al year aitributable 1o the owners of the parent 37,932
Adjustments for:
Tax on profitiioss) 7 16,294
interest recervable and sim-ar \ngome [ (130}
Interect payal @ and cther sirnilar cnarges 3] 33,554
Provt on disposal of subsidianes anc :cint verture 2] {29,532}
IMcome from ,ont venture -
lrconre frarm fixed assel investmaonts (5.249)
Amortzation and smparment of intangible TGxed assetz 5 45,762
Deprecation of tang v'e fred assels E 101,802
Non cash stafl conls 3,040
Movarnments on danyatves and (ore gn exchange (£8,044)
Ircresse nstock (19,829}
{lncreaszel/decrease In gebrors 31,022
Increased(decreaset in Crediors {173,956)
Mor-controthrg inerssts 19 (6,622)
Tax receved; |rj} 25,853
Net cash generated from opefafrirl;lr;actl\rltles T B 41,897
Cash flows from investing activities S
Furchasc of subsidiary ungertaki~gs inet ot Cash acgired) (52,377)
Sale of sebaidiary unaertanngs and Jont verture 101,778
Purchase of tangibic aszets {322,446)
Purcrase of "tangiole assats (7.222)
FLrenase of urlsied investrnents {124,203)
Sate of unustey Imvestmeants 10 105,000
Irrerest receved S} 130
Ire ore V)F"Jomr vanTre -
Net cash used in mvestmg actlwtles - S (299,340) 7
Cash flows from financing actn;:;-n;as i - o 7
Proceeds from francong 201,719
Interest cad (32,319)
Regayrerts Of Anarcirg (32,013)
Proceeds from share 1ssue 15 203,750
"a”u‘a,rmwc.rs ares 18 -
Net cash generated frm;l"hnancmg actlwtles . - o “341 137
Net (decrease)lmcrease in cash and cash equivalents - 83,694
Cash ano casn g Jvalents st the Deginning " e year 11 172.4:/5“%””
Excrnange gars an cash and cash equs f:lE’ : I L 243
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - il 256 415

(restated)
2021

(27005

8.349
{397)
36,068
(28,568)
(1755}
{449)
37704
84667
8,875
19.788)
(5,701
249,374
6,871
(4,007}
(L 7“3

241, 917

{221,98/)
34,503
(110457)
(875}
(29.617)
20,133
597
1077

o226

{35,552}
(212,676}
184,355
(6,359)

(70,268)

(34.577)

206,688

367
172478

£E000

Note 28 details the prior penod adjusirmeanrts,
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Traging Limited ('the Comipany’) is a private company limited by snares anc incorporated on 14 May

2020 The cornpany 15 aormiciled in Ergland, the United Kingdorn and reg.stered under comrpany number
12601836 The agadress of the regsstered office 15 at 6th Floor, 33 Aoiporn, Lordon, England, FCIN 2HT.

Statement of compliance
The Grouo and individuzl irzancial statements of Fern Tradirg Limited have been prepared in cormp. ance
w ih United Kingdorm Accounting S ndards, ncludimg Financial Reporting Stancard 102, Tae Financal

Reportng Stendard aoplicanie in the United Kingdor and the Repunlc of ireland (FR5 1027 ana the
Companies Act 2006

Bagis of preparation of financial staterments

The financial staternents nave been prepared on a going corcern basis, under the historical cost convention,

as mocified by the recogriton of certain inarcial assets and lab’ltes measured at far vaiue, and in

accordance with tre Comean es Act 2006 ard applcable account '“;g standaras in the Unitea ¢ngdom Tne

principatl accodnting colbces, whic have neen applied consistently throughout the year, are set out below,

The conzehdated financial staterments include the results of all subsidieres cwned by Fern Trading Lirmiteg
as listed in rote 29 of tnhe annual inancial statements. Certain cormmpanies of these subsidiaries, which are
listed In note 2%, have taken tne exempting from an audit for the year ended 20 June 2027 permitted oy

ection 4794 of Comparies Act 2005 In order to allow these subsidianes o tske tne audit exempt;‘or, the
paremt company has given a staiutory guarantee, in ne with sect on 47%C of Companies Act 2006, of all

the cutstanding ret iamlities a¢ a1t 30 Juneg 2022

Going concarn

The Group's and the Compary's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performarcs and posztmh are set out the Strategic Report on pages 4 1o 14, The financial
positicn of tne Group, ts cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are cescribed In the fnancia.
review on pages 25 to 27 The pringpal nsks of the Groug are set cut on gages 16 to 19,

The Directors periorm an annual go ng concern review that considers the Group's ability 1o maet its
financial obligatiors as they fall due, for a period of at leazt twelve rnonths after the date that the hirancial
staterrents nave been signed

Due to the chalenging market condition: maragement have pericrmed an assessrment 1o determine
wheatner there are any materal uncerainties ansing that could cast significant douibt on the anidity of the

Group to continue as a going concearn No significant issues have been noted ard as a conseguance, the
directors believe that the Group s wel! placed t¢ manace its busiress nsks successfully despite the current
uncertain econcmic outiaok
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In reaching this conclugon the Ditectors nave reviewed the financial impact of the urcertainty o the
Groun's baance sheet, profit ard (oss anc cash flows with specific considerat’'on given 10 the foticwing

A reverse stress test was performed on the base Case forecast to ascerta » what scenar os would resuitin

risks 1o the Groups lguidty position The test showed everi I an uniike .y scerano of nificant reducion

of revenue of 46%, the Group < able to sustan its current ooerational costs and mee H bzbkilities as they fall
due for at lzast a year from the date of sigring mese fnarcizl statements wien utlising the avaizable

facilities wthin the Group

The Group nas a nurrber of financing faciiies that contain covenants requiring the Group 1o maintain
specified finarcia. ratos and comp.y with cestain other financial covenants. These francial covenants are
ested at least gquarterly, and, at the date of this report, the Groug is in compliarnce wth all its Anancial
covenants Stress tests on reasorably plausible scenarios such as a sgnificant reduction ir EBTDA of 84%
over time have beon used ta assess the covenant reguraments for the at least the next twelve merths ard

ai covenarts nave bocn forecast to pe met ever Under the stress tost scenario, in the going concearn percd

AL 30 June 2022, the Group had avalasie as™ of G and headroom availabie of E441m noiudimg &

revoly.ng creat faclty of E210m Debt of E%m is duz to mature i- less tnan ore year, w th the romrairder
of £956m payable in more than ane year The os faclucs, repayment dales and undrawn amourts are
161

set out I NGote oans and Barrowings.

Hey accourting judgemenrt and esimates have been made with considerauor given to the curent
ecoromic cutlook. Key est.mares include loan recoverabi. ty. valuation of work 'n progress,
decommissioning |

<. impa reent of goodwilh and mvestrraris, oS ness comoina

ong ard nedge
accodnting. Setads are set out o pages SC to &1

Based or the above assessmant of current economic conditions and the imoact on ine Growp's financia
position, lgedity a7d finarcial covenarnits, tre ciroctors have corciuded that the Groug and Carmpany has

adequate resources W cont

nue ir operalonal exsience for the next 12 montns. Thus, they continue to
adopt the going concern pasis of accouanting in preparicrg tne annual francial statemeants

Evemptions for gusiifying entities under FRE 102

FRS 102 allows a qualifying ety certair disclosore exerrptions, subject to certam conditons, whicn Faye
beer compied wih, rcuding notiication of. and no apjection to, the use of examptions oy the Campany's
shareholders

Tre Company haz taken acvartage of the following exerviouons’

from preparing a statermer: of cash flows, on the basis tr
statement of Cash ﬂows, ircludea i these finarcal st

itis a quaJliving entity and the conwclidated

W

at
arnerts, inciuced the Company's cash lows;

. from the financial instrurment disclosures, eauired unaer FRS 102 paragraphs 1125 to 11 484 and
saragranks 1226 (o 12 29, a3 the nformator s proviced it the consoleawd frranc al staferment

disclosares

i from cisc.osing tre Cornpany Ksy managemeanl DErzonte: CCmeensanon, as réda
= ¥ b =] k

paragrach 337
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated fimancial statemenis include the results of Fern Trading Lirnited ard all ts subsidiary
undertaiongs made up to the same accounting date. Al intra-group balances, trarsactions, income and
experses are eliminated in full o0 consol dation The results of subsid'ary undertakirgs acquired or dispased
of durmng the pericd are included or excluded from the ncome staterment from the effective dae of
acquisitinn or disposal.

All undertzkings over wrich the Grouc exercises control, being the power to govern the firancial and
coerairg policies so as to obiain perefts from their actities, are corsol dated 25 zubsdiary dndertakings
Where a substdiary nas dilfereny accounting policies to the Groupg, ad;ustmems are made 0 those
subsidiary financial statements w apoly the Group's accounting policies whean preparing the consol dated
finarcal staternents

Aray sbbszd:ary undertax ngs or assocetes sold or acquired dunng tre year are inciuded up to, or from, the
dates of change of control

o change of significant influence respecty

Where the Groun has writtan a put cption over shares neld by a non-cortrolling interest, the Group
gerecogrises tne non-contrellng nterest and instead recogrised contingent deferred consicaration lanility
w trin ather payables for tre estimated amount u<ely 10 be pad to the nom-controlling miterest on exerc'se
of those options. The residaal amount, representng the difference between any consideration paid/ocayable
and the non-cortrolirg interest's smare of net assets, 1s recognised as goodwill. Movements in the
sstimared iability after inital recogninon are recogrised as goodwill.

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Groug financial statemerts gre presented in ocund sterling ang rounded to thousands.

The Company's functional and presentation currency s pownd sterling and rounded to thousands

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactons are trarslated nto e functicnal currency usng the spot exchangea rates at
the dates of the t ransactions. At eaca period end fareign currency maonetary itemns are transiated usirg the
closing rate. Nor-mionetary items measurad at hvstoncal cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction and non-monetary iteris meazured at fair value are measured using the exchange
rate wrien fair value was determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the set:\emem of

transactions and from the trarslation at pericd-end excrange rates of mcnetary aszets and dabilines
denominaed in fore.,gn currencies are recognised in the profit and loss cunr

All foreign excnange gains ard (0sses are presented in the orofiz and loss accouwnt within admiristrative
experses.

iii. Translation

The trading results of Group undertakings are translated Into pounds sterling at the average axchange rates
for the year. The assets and liabilities of averseas undertakings, including qooc will and fair value adjusuments
arising on acquisiion, are transtated at the excnange rates ruling at the year-end Gxchange adiustrrents
arsing from the retranslation of apenirg net investments and from the ranslation of the profits or iosses

at average rates are recognised in ‘Other compranensive income’ and allocated to non-controling interest

as aporopnate

:
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Statement of accounting policies
Turnover
The Group operates a number of ciasses of ousiness Revenue is derved by the following:

« Energy
Turriover from the sale of electicity gensrated oy solar farms, wind ganerating assets, reserve power
plants and biomass and landhll sites is recogrisea on an accruals basis in the per oo inwhich itss
generateq, Revanue from long term government backed offtake agreemerts, such as tne Renewable
e

Chugation Certification (ROC™) scheme are accraed in the period o whicn @ relates to Turnover “rom the

sae of fertiliser by biomass ard lardill busiresses is recogrized on phyaical dizpatch
s Healthcars

o

Turnover s recogrised when the significan: risks and rewarcs ©F ownership of retirerr ent properties have
passed Lo the buyer (on legat comp.etian), the armount of revenus car be recogrused reliably, and it s
o

probable that the econorc berefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity Turnover
is recagnised at the far val.e of the consideratlion received for heathcare services provided in the norrat

cowrse of busness, and 12 shown et of VAT Turnover is recagrized based on the date e service 15
provided.

= Leraing

provided o customers, net of ary value

acded tax Loan inieresl 1s reccgrised on an acorua. basis nune with cortractua. erms of the oan

agreerment Arrangement e re spraad over e life of tre loan 1o which they ralate.

» Fiore
Turnover & recogrised at the fair value of the consideraticn received for internet connecuvily and refated

services pravided r trne norrral course of businass, and is shown ~et of VAT, Turmover S recognise
IT services ¢ d Tral f business, and is shown ~et of VAT, Turnove -5 recognised
bazed on the date the service is provioed

= Howse buitding
Turmoveris recognisec an legal completior of the sale o property, and a1d cormercia. spaces Turnover
frarn Fousing asscaation contracts s recogrised by reference to the va'ue ¢F work comp.eted as a

nroportion of the total contract valuc,

Emploves benaefits

Tre Group orovides a range of borefits to empicyses o oanrual bonus arrangerents, cad roliday

arrangermients and defined contripulicn pension §ans.

i. Short-term benefits
Shori- terrr benefits incioding hoiiday pay ard other similar non monetary benefts, are recogrised as an
ex c

wwerse in me panod in wh
ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defired contribut o plar 1s a pensior plar under whicn the Group pays Fred contnbutors nte a

separate ety Once the contr.buions rave been paid the Group nas ~o further payment obhigations

)]
[oN
-
4]
=
]
O
=

4rits net paid are snown n

accruals In the balance sheet Tne assets of tne p.ar are held separately frem the Croup it ndependertly

Tre contniouhions are recognised as an experse when they ar
S are

administerad ‘urds.

i
e
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iil. Share-based payments
Casr-settled chare-based payrnens are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. The Group

ﬁ
b

ecogrises a labiiity al the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking into account the estimated
rumber of Jruts that wil aclualy vest and the current proportion of the vesung perio

Changes in “he vatue of this liability are recogrused in the incomie statement,
“The Grous has no equity-settled arrangements.

Finanece cosls

firance co818 & e charged W the pirodil and woss atcounl over lne terr & the debt using the effective
interest metnod so that the amcunt charged 15 at a constant rate on the carrying amount Issue costs are
Initially recogn sed as a reduction in the proceeds of the associates capital instrument and released 1o th
profit arnd loss account over the ferm of the debt,

Lurrent and deferred tax

Tax s recogrrsed in the staerent of ncome and retained earnings, except trat a change attrbutable to ar
itern of income and experse recognised as otner comprehersive INcome o to an item recognised arectly
N equity 1s aiso recagniced in cther comprehensive incorne or directly :n egu Ty respectively

TNe current income tax charge is caiculated on the bass of tax rates and laws that Fave ceer enacted or
substaniively enacied by the balarce sheet date in the courtries where the Company operates and
generaies ncome.

Deferred balances are recognised n rescect of all trming differences that have ong nated but not reversed

by tne Balance sheet date, except that:

« The racogrition of deferred tax assets s imited to the exient that it is probabie that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax hablities or other future taxable profts; and

= Any deferred tax batances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associatea tax allowsances
have been met

Deferred tax balances are not recogrised in respect of permarent differences except in resoect of pusines
combinatons, when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair va:ues of assels ar'qusred

~id the future tax deducuons avai@able for them and the differerm:es between the fair values of liabilities
acqu\' ad and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance :heef date.

Bushiess combinations and goodwill
Husiness combpinatiors are accountad for by applying the purcnase method.

The cost of a business combination is the far value of the cansideration given, iadilives incured or
assumed and the equity insfruments 1ssued plus tha costs directly attributanle to the business combinauon
Where control s achieved in stages the costis the consideration at the date of each transaction,

Cr acguisition of a business, far values are attributed to the idenufiable assets, lianiites and contimgent

liabilities unless the fair value cannot oe measured redably. in which case the valug is incorcorated as
goodwill Where the far valus of contingert liak:lities canrot be reliably measured they are disclosed
o the same basis as other contingenit liabilities.
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwll recognized represents the excess of the fair value and directly atinbutanle costs of tre purchase

nsideration cver the fair values o the Groun's interest in the dem.ﬂabze net as
comngemt habilities acquirs

On acquiston, goody 13T are expected t© cenelt frorm
o

e comiz ration

Goodwall i armor

ed aver 175 expecied usefld iife which is determired based on the astimated lfespan of
the assets acguired Wnere the Group s unable 1o make a rellable estiviae of useful ife, gooow s
amortised over a period not exceaang ten years Goodw L is revewed ane assessed for ‘'mgairment
rdicators on an annual Basis and any ‘mpairment 1s cnarged to the prott and loss.

Tangible fxed asgely

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less georecigtior Depreciation 13 provide at mates calculated to wrire
off tne cost of fixed assots, l2ss teir estmated residual valde, over ther capacted useful bves Deprecea;wor‘w

commences from the date an asset is crought INt7 sewvice Lang ana assers N the course of consruction
are not deprecigted The estimaten usaful lives are as foliows
=lgls. '1' t,u ldl qs 2% 10 ':trc,\r__;‘ v lne
3%t k/: str a\g‘wt ne

r\lcw mk assets A% to E% k.t'u-g"t ine

Assets in the course of construction are stated ar cost These assets are -

=ciated until they are

valable fory

%]

Vhere fscors, such as technolog.cal advarcerent or changes in rarket prce, Incicate that residual value

or uscful life have chaﬁg? the regicual value, Lseful life or deoreciation rate are anended crosneciively to
reflect the ne stances. Tre assefs are reviewad for pnpa rrent i the above faciors -ndicate that the
carrying arnount rray be impaired.

withir croft or loss

mmﬁga & BEsets

accomuiated amortisat.on and accurruated mpairment losses.

o allocate the depreciable amourt of the assets
f lows

s are inciuded ir admnisirstive expenses

Ceveloprnent ngnts relate 1o plann'rg corsent 1o bu ¢ a solar farm and awnd “arr acaured on acguiston,

Gans and losses or disposals are determineg oy companing the proceeas with the carrying amourt and are
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Where factors, such as chanoes in market prnice, indicate tnat residual vaiue or useful fe nave changed, the
residual value, useful ufe or amortisation rate are amerded prospectively to reflect the new circumstances

The assets are reviewed for impa rment If the above factors ndicate that the carrying amount may
be impaired

Leases

At mcephorv the Grou‘; astesses agreements that transfer he nght to use zsges, The assessment considers
whether the arrargemert is, or cortans, a lease based on the substance of tne arrangemer: and whether
the ease shcmi Le classified a3 either g ﬁrwa e lease or an cperating lease.

Leases of gssets that ransfer substantally all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as
finance leases Fmdme leases are capitaiised at e commencerent of the lease at the fair value o the
leased asset a~d deprec’ated over the shorter of tne iease term and the esamated Jseful life of the asset

>
¢

s52's are assessed for ‘mpairmens af each reporiing date

Leases tnat do not transfer all the asks ana rewards of ownership are claszified as operaung leases
Payments unger operatirg leases are charged to the profit and l0ss account on a straight-une Dasis over the

nencd of the lease.

investments

The Compary rolds irvestmants In 2 subsidiary at cos: less accumulated impairment losses. «f ar

rnpairmert ass s subseguently reversed, the Zarrying amount of the nvestment s mcreased 1o the revssed
estimate of its recoverable amount, but orly o the extent that the revised carrying arrount does not excesd
the carry.ng amount that would have been determined had no impairrrert .oss beern recognised n pror
penods A reversal of an impairment lass is recognised in the profit and loss account.

{ash

Casm ircludes cash in nand and deposits «epayatle on dermand Restricted cash represents cash for which
the Group does not have immeaiaie and direct access or for which regulatory or legal requirerrents restrict
the e of the cash

Stocks

Raw matera.s, spare parts and corsumables are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable vaus Where
necessary. a provision s made for obsolete, slow-rroving and defectve stock. Costis determined on the
first-"r. first-out (FIFO) method.

Fiel stocks (MBM and btter) are valued on an average cost basis over one o two months and provision for

ele
unusatie Ltter s reviewed maontriy and applied to off-site stoc

=

Fuet stock of siraw has teen valued at the historical cost per tonne of straw. A provision for unusable straw
15 wdentified on anindividual stack basis anc is reviewed monthly. Stocks are used an a first in, first out

("FI=C") bas s by age of straw.
Stacks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost ard net reglisable value to the Group.

Stocks of property developrnent work in progress "WIR) are stated at the lower of cost and net reat-sable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct abour coste and those overheads that
nave teen mourred 1n bringing the stocks to therr prezent locatiors and condition
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AT

el

each reporting date an asseszmert 1s made lor rmpairment. Any excess of the carying amaount of

Iy
s over its estimated zelling price less coes 1o complete and sat

lisre ngsea as an irgairment loss
trrough the profit and loss account Reversals of impalrment 1osses are 3180 recagnised 1in the profit and
loss account

Acerued incoms

Accrued Income on loans s calculated a1 the rate Of interest sat outin the ican contracts. Energy INcome |
accrued over the period in whica it has oeen gererated.

Dafarrad income

Ceferred income 1s recogn.sed in accordance with the terrmis sct out in the contact Deferred income is
released to the prodt and loss account in the pencd o which it relates

Financial instruments

The Grouo has chosen to adopt Sections 11 ang 12 of RS 107 in respect of financial nstruments
Finnancial assels

Szsic financial assets, incl svab et and cash ard pank balarces are nitiatly

recogrised at transac rrent const utes & ﬁ znaing transactiorn, wheee the
transachon is measured st the present vaue of the future recepts discounted at a market rate of Interes

Such assers are subsequently carned at armortised cost Laing tne effective rrerest metrod

At the end of cacn reporiing period hranaia, as ured at arnortised cost are «

ssessed for ooentve

a
evidence of imparrment. if an asset s impaired the m nt o35 18 the difforence between the carrying

’73 T
OJ A
(D J

amount ard the present vawe of the estimated cash f we giscounted asthe asse:'s origifa\ effectve interes

rate Tre mparment loss is recoansed in proft or loss

Oiner inandial assets, nouding investrnents in eguity instrumenis whick are ~ot subsidianes, assodiates or
jorrt ventures, are initiaily measured at fair va'ue, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are
subsequenty carried at fair value and the chargos in farr value are recegn sed ir profit ar loss, excep! that
INVESTTENts 1n aquty Instrormeants that are not puplicly raded and whose farr values cannot be measures
relially are measured at Cost @SS IMoarmeant

ssets are derecogn sed when (a) the contractual ngnis 2 the cash flows from the assel expire or

a
are settled, or (b) Swsrma'{laii) Cthe risks arg rewards of tre ownersh'p of the asset are tra
[

ferrad to

antre: of the assel has nsferred to anotner party who has the practical abidity
¥

) co
to unidaterally seil the aszet o an Jrrelated third party without rmocs ng additional restricions
Financial Uabilities

Basic financial liaoiutes, 1mciuang trade and ot~er cayal Croup comoanies

and prefererce shares, are initally recogmised at transac

T consttutes a
fnancirg trarsact-on, where The deot instrument 1s reeasured at toe present vatae of trhe future receipts

discounted at a market rate of interest.

i
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Statement of accounting policies

Debl nstrurmernts are subseauenily carted at amaortised cost, using the effectve interest rate methed. Fees
pald on tne establishmert of :can facilities are recogrised as transact on costs of the 1oan © the extent that
it is orobable that scme or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferrec untit the

draw-down occurs To the extent therz is no evidence that it1s pruuable et some or alt of tne facility will
a

be drawn down, the fee s capitaliced as a pre-payrment for dquidity services and amortised over the peric

of the ‘zolity o which it relates.

Trade paysbles are oblgations to pay for goods or serwces tnal have been acguirsd in the ordinary course
Of BusIness rom suppliers. Accounts cayatle are classified as current Lakelities if paymenrt is dus wihin one
year or tess |f nnf, tney are presented as non-current labiuties Trace payacies are recogrised imtatly at
tranzaction price and subsequently measured at amoriised Cost using tne effective interest method

Finarcal liabilties are derccognized when the ablity is extinguisned, trat s when the contractual obligation
= chacharged, cancelied or expres

Provisions
Provis:ons are made where an event has taken place tnat gives the Group a legal or constructive obligation
that probably requres setilement by a transfer of economic benefit, and a relab e estimate can be made of

the arnount of the nbligation

Provisions are cnarged as an expense 1o the proft and loss accourt o the vear that the Group pecomes
aware of the ocigailcn, and are measured af the best est mate at the calance sheer date of e expenditure
required to sattle the obogation, takirg into accoun: relevant risks and uncertainues.

ﬂe&g%ng

The Group aophes nedge accounting for transactiors ertered iIrto to manage the cash flow exposures of
borrowngs Interest rate swags are beld 10 manage the irterest rate exposures and are designated as cazh
flow heages of floating rate borrowings Chariges in the “air values of dervatives designated a3 cash flow
Fedages, and which are efiective, are recagnised directly in equity Any ireffectiveress in the redg.ng
relatonship (baing the excess of the cumulative change in fair value of the hedg:ng instrurmient since
incegtion of the hedge cver the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged tem aince nception of
the nedgel is recogrized in the profit and loss.

The gain or loss recogn'sed in other comprehensive incorme 1s reclassified to tme proft and oss 10
accordance with the cash flows of tre heogea itemn Hedge accounting s dscontinued when the hedging
instrumient expires, Ao longer meets the hedging criteria, the forecast transaction s no longer nighiy
probabie, the hedced debtinstrument is derecognised or the hedging instrument s terminatec

Share capital

Crdinary srares issued by the Groug are recognised in equity at the value of the procseds received, with the
excess over nom:iral value being credited to snare premiurm.

Mon-controlling interests

Non-controling interests are measured at their proporfionate share of the acauiree’'s identifiablz net aszets

at the date of acguisition
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Hey accounting jaﬁg&mm%m and estihmates

Tne preparation of financat staterrents in compliance with RS 102 requires the use of certair critical
Qe

sccourting estirmates It 2lso requires management 1o exercize judgement in applyng the Comaanry’s

accourting pe.cies

Lrates and judgements are conunually evaluaied and are based on nistorical

aexpenence and other factors, including excectations of future events that are belisved 10 ba reasona
under the crcumstarcas The key estimaies and judgements in prepanng these financia. statemerts are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {(estimate)

Loans and advances to custorners including assocated accrusrd income balances, are reviewed for
Impairmen: on a quarterly basis. In considerning the need for a provisior. rranageme 't deterrmine their best
est'rmate of the expecied future casn Hlows cn a case by case basis. As this estimate relies or a certain
number of ass.mpticns apout fuiure events which snay afer from ectual outcomes, inciuding the
borrower's ability to repay nmerest and capital due in future penods, this gives rise o judgement as o
whether there is a shortfall between tne carrying value and the fair vaiue of the debtor talance,

t zal estimate and Cave therefore

a change
of +/- one per centin the arrount provided dgrl"l"f the esurmatec ba.ance af risk would have resultes in

Management rote that provisions against toans and advances is a or

performed sensitivity analyss on the provis sensitivity a~alysis con

£Zem ess/more expenditure peing charged to the incorme statement dunng the panoad Soe note 135 for the

carryng amours of the debtors ard provis ons at 30 June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WIP') (estimate}

Property developmeat WIP s reviewed for irrparment on a per ocic basis It cons denng the need for a
provision, maragement determine tharr best estimrate of tne recoverakle value Ma'wagerreﬂt engage an
erper: exwarna, va.uer 1o orovide key assurnphons abour fufure events wo el rmay differ from aciuat
outcorres, rcluding oroperty vawations, rate of sales end cevelopmen: costs,

—
™y
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far value of the ‘alamce a5 at the 30 Sune 2022 Pout year end, maragerent have reviewesd the
Y g
usea to determune the value of property cevewonment WIP and have ooserved no changes in
performance mat would impact the vaiuauon as at the 30 Sune 2022 Seo note 12 far the carrying a~curt
of the property development Wik

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement}

The Group owns two erergy gererating subadiaries in Australia wihic™ have enterad into purchase price
agreements (PPAS) n 2013 and 2021 The PPAs incude a contract for aifferances "CIL" whereby the
sunsiciares payfreceive amnourts fromt the customer basec on tne differences pebween a fixzed selling price
or el ctr:c!ty soln to the Australan energy market. Tre directors celieve tre Comiraci s
cutside tne scooe of "RS 102 section 12 as s “or ine <ale f @ nan-firanc al item ard tre CfD is tyo.cal for

such arrangernents Tner@‘ore itis ceirg accourten for under FRS 202 secton 232 as a reverue contract vt
[

vanab.e consideratan, rather thar reva u ng the entre contract 1o far valug

iv. Business combinations (estimate}

Trie cost of 2 pusiness combination s the fair value of the corsideratcr gven, lisbilines imcurred olus the
costs directly atinbutasle o the ousess combinaion Far vaiue of these corrbiral.ons is a key estimale

and more defals are proviced on pages 45 o 45,

e nse o judgement as to wretrer tnere is a shortfall between the Carying valde ard the
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decormrmissioning costs is measdred at managerrent's best estimae of the present valde
of the expenditure required to settle the future oklgation o return land on which there are operaticnal wind
and solar farms, to its o-igina: condiven The level of the provisicns is determined to a sign:ficant degree by
the esumation of future d:smantling and restoration costs. as well as the urming of disrmantiement

Wind Farms {estimate):

Maragerent note tnat decomrrissionirg provisions (£ a critical estimate and have tnerefore performed
sensitvity avalysis The resulls of the sensitivity analysis conclude that a change of +/- one per centin the
cicconnt rate wornrd have resulted .0 £2.1m incregse/decrezsa in the provision See ncte 17 for the provicion
recognised at 30 Jure 2022 Management utlize external expertse w provide an estimated cost to
dismantle and have used 3 discount rate of 2% o reflect the trme in value of money and the riske speahe
to the ooligauon.

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Grouan is regluared to restore the leased prermizas of the solar farm to their ongina conciton at the end
of the lease term. A provision was previously recognised, however in ihe current year this judgement has
been reassessed and manacement beliove the lessor may wish to either take tite of the assets for either
continuea use o to reaise value through selling the assets and as such do not believe that an outflow iz
probacie to setnie this resworation coegaticon

UK Solar (estirmate):

Durning the year, 3 thire party performed an assessment of the base cost of the decommussicring of the
Groups UK solar farms The andings have -esultea in material change m the cost estimate and therefore a
provisior has been recogruses for the frst time on some stes. The impact has resuited in a prov sion berg
ra‘sed for £18m ¢ the balance sheet decorrmissioning labiity and fixed assets. As at 30 Jure 2022 there 15
no impsci on the profit and loss Sites not aSected are addrassed below.

UK and French Solar {judgment):

Maragement believe that given the nature of these particular assets, the lessor may wish to eithar ta<e utle
of the atsers for esher continued use or to reasce value through selling the assets and as such do not
believe that an outflow 1s probable to settle this restorat-on obligation. Managernent will continue o momtor
the situation at each baance sheet date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)

The value of goadwiil neld by the Group and investments in subsidary undertakings held by the Company
is reviewed annually for impairment. The recoverabil ty of these batances is corsidered with reference to the
oresen: value of the estimated future cash flows Thece calculatons use cash flow projections which exend
forward forecast business performance together with assurnpions surrcdnding tre expecied e of the

sset, externaily prepared forecasts and valuations, and any adjustments required to the discount rate to take

[aB)

account of business risk. The estimated present value of these future cash fiows is sensitive (o the discount
ate and growth rate used in the calculation, all of which reguire management’s judgement Testing of the

=

carrying value has been cerformed during the year, which kas invelved several scenarios being medetied.
Basec or this testing anc the resulting impairment recognised on investmeants, managerrent beueves thers
15 sufficiert headroom o suppoert the value of goodwill and investments in subsidiary entities.

Managernen: note that impa rment of goodw [l ang investmenrts is a critical estimate and have therefore
performed sersitivity analysis on the provision. The resdlts of the sensitivity analysis conclude that @ charoe
of +/- ore per cent in the arnount provided agams: tne estimated baiance at risk would Have resulted in
£5.49m tess/more expenditure be ng charged to the incorme statement during the period. See note 8 for
the carrying arncunt of the goodwill and rvestments at 30 June 2022,
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A ECER TN

Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£000

3 activihes 42,404
Energy operations — solar, reserve power and wind 365,958
Frergy oparations - biomass and landfill 223,526
tealthcare cperations” 45,978
Herne buiiding 25,034
Fibre operations 8,930

77777 - 711,830

202t
£000

Pee ey RCERE P AN YSPIRATTRRRSERRN R akade st R T T

56557
179820
141826
42,266
4828
425302

Inciuded inincorne fror —eatthicare operations 15 L7 4m 2021 L1512l reaung D the sate of et remeant vilage urng,

anc £28 6 (2021 £71 Zrpin relation to services renderes

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022

603,911
Europe 84,433

TTT— AT e e e e e uuu emese e uue e e RR Y E SESNYATRTR.Y 5 AMERY BNS ckeww & ek mesen s

United Kingdom

711,830

£oo0 .

23,486

2021

31,893
8610
425,302

Other income

2022
£°000

L

2021
£'000

Ligu'dated damag

3,550

9,454
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nis s stated afer charging/(crediting)

B LR T L LT T m—— b s S5 B S R0 BB £ K B4 8 B AT £ e T

Amcrtization of Intanginle asse!s note 8)
Imparment of irtangible assets \note 8]
Crepreciation of tangible assets (note &)

Auditers’ remuneration - Company and the Group's
fina~cizl statements

Additors’ romuneraton - audit of Company § sJbs d aries

Auditors’ remunerahion ran auct sericos
Audirers’ remiungralion - lac COMmplance senvices
Lifferonce onforagr exchangs

Ciperaling lease rentas

2022
£000

37.849
7.913
101,802

carsclidated

as

819
246
482
1772
13,783

{restated)
2021
000

R

1134
513
672

4402

7502

Note 26 detaiis the prior cerod adjustments

K SR R E R S

2022
£'000

I 2 T A

Wages and salaries
Social secunity costs

Other pension cosis

P e RE 8 g

2021
£'000

85,432
7041

95,706

3,233

41385
3,809
1676
46,868

The Group provides a defired contribation schemes for its empioyees in the UK The amount recognised as
an exgense for the defined contributon scheme is shown in the tab.e above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022
Number

2021

Number

e R ST

Adrirustration

e R

1,032
631
3

699
348
3

1,050

The Company had one empioyee other than Dire

ctors during the perica ended 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel
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2022
£000

Errcluments o o 176

T e RO HDHIRE K kb bbb e o 3 Tu L7700 E T

Durng the year no pension Lontributions were made in respect of the directors 2021 nonej

The Group has no other key managemner: (2021 none)

=
%]
i
v

3
\1
,ﬂ

number of sunsidiaries of the Group operate :
cmployees render services .n excharge
valuzion of the underlyimg subsidary. The
regorung date @nd at the settiemant date, Tne fa1r value s recognised over the vesting period Th

of exoence recogn’sed takes N account tre best ava ladie esumate of the number of drils expecten

vast under the serv.ce and performance condinons underlyng each award granied

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022
Number of
awardsm ]

e A L TR RO R PHARS NN T AN 1 L EuE s TR E R B b R £ von s e we w SEY L T TUVESIUAAL B4 N Ak hade b g i e A

()rmr ng cutsand:ng \_;\JH\ e 1,914,751
m“ ted Gy 716 B1C Do 1 763 563

Closmg outstanding balance 3,678,314

3
for cash, tme amodrt of wihnice is determined oy reference tc the
e fa

arvalue of t~e laoiity for the awards rmace 1s measured at each

r'['

ett.ed _TIP to gualfying empioyees, whereby

Amount

-

1o

2021

Number of

awea rds

sveanng pee rreavaY s E AT

1.640,000

?74 721
19L4 751

Tre tctal charge for the year was £3,133,00C (2021 £1.334,050) ard at the 30 June 2022 there was a
Latiity of £2,407.000 irciuded within cred.crs greater than one year (2021 £1,324,0001

Interest receivable and similar income 2022

£'000

\m—'e” a1 bank baiar 130

2021
£ OOn

T 2R 7 VST AER S 4 { b e o e o © s arsse e eeRes e b rEEE RRgRe s et b RS YR EEATRES A BRI RI A ek E Bt v ore Can

997

Interest payabte and similar expenses 2022

32 192

Irerest on bonk jelolade;

Arcorizahor of issue 05t on bank borrowings 2,597
PIoAtloss on 2ervatve Arancia, INstrurrents (1,235)

33,554

2021

24378

1,103
587
36,068
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? I L

a) Analysis of charge in year

{reslated)
2022 2021
e | £000 _£000
Cu"en“ax wwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww T 4 PR S Sk e e £ e Np——
K corporation tax charge on profitv/lloss) far the year (297) 1648
Adistments in respect Of prior pernods 3,196 {2.860)
ore [Ivial :ax buffz—rr 5,641 -
Tr tai current tax charge/ic rei ;l o 8540 ) (1218:
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of Lming & 6,227 2074
Agiustments in respect of prior pencds (3.741) (3.998)
Effectnfc ange In tax e 5,268 11 491
Tax charge on profitiﬁosﬁ} on'ofc‘lliﬁaar'yﬂacti\liiiile‘s“ l ‘ 16.294 ‘8,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year s hw’gher (2021' migner] than the standara rate
19% 2021 19%) The differences are expiained Below!

of corporaton ax in the UK of

g xR g e B I S i R e

Profltl {1oss) before tax

Proft/loss) be_\( re tax rTul IJ[ICQ oy smndaro rate of
corporation tax in the Ux of 19% (2020 19%)

Effects of:

Expenses rot deductinie for tax purposes
Other effects

Incorre not taxakae for tax purposes
Adjustments in respect of grier penads
F'fec*s hf Pm;mr‘e in tax rafes

Total tax charge for the year

(restated)

2022 2021
£000 £000
47,604 (21,17@)
9,045 {4.022)
11,723 16,076
{868) 1,022
(8,102) {9,351
{545} (6,865

5, 041 11489

" 16,294 8349

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Ac: 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UK corgoration tax from 18% to
25%, effective 1 April 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured gt 25% 2021 25%)

wWhich represents the future corpaoratuon tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

Note 26 details the prior perodc agustments.
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8

Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated) rights
Group « £'000 Eoo0 .. E000 £000
P AR b3 e et S SRR« 18 A R A g e
ALT July 2021 (res ated] 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acglired throualh business 30,042 4,058 34,100
compinatonsg (rote 27
Additons 2125 - 1,040 3165
Ciaposa's - (21.118) - (21,118)
\ ) - 7950 - 7930
At 30 June 2022 3,089 | 743,456 15314 761859
Accumulated amort;satnonr - ‘ .
At 1 Juy 2771 nestatad) 107 155,907 1,534 161,043
Disposas - (2.462) - (2.462)
Loss on trarslaten - (192) {192}
Irespanrraeit - 7,913 7913
Lharije or tre year 12 57 523 5/849
At30June 2022 I 119 202,475 1557 204451
Net baok value ) o . ‘
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708
ALI0 June 2077 (eslatad) 857 566700 9182 576739

Tre gamn on translaton of foreign currency dencminated goodwil s

income Arcortization of goodwili s charged to adminsranon Cost.

Detalls of the sukbsidanes acquirea during the year erded 30 Jun

Curng the year the group disposed of 2 vwind ‘arms in Firland, as a resuit £2.

armaortisat
sale recog

Crowas recogrised

nised in the proft and ios i relator

Impainmert of £79m has been recognised on goodwill (2021 rone

etz at 30 Jur

2 2007 (2020

ecunty for labilit es at year end (2021 none)

The Corroany had no intargikle ass

none

e 2022 can

recogrised in other cornprenensive

ce found Iin note 27

5rr of accumulated goodwill

o this tranzachion was £28m

N e carrent year and £19 3m of goodwili was realised on the sale Gan on
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9 iy
Land and Fower Plant and Network Assets under Totat
buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated)

{restated)

Group £'000 £000 £°000 ’ £000 £000

co“ e o e e e S RSt 7

AT Joy 2621 restancd) 8,531 317467 1695437 27.288 43,277 2.092.000

Addiions 829 1536 73647 60462 238,006 374480

f‘acq‘\‘ure? tr-rcrvu‘gr\ bu“uﬂ& 1368 _ 51244 _ 57663 110,315

combinations inote 27

Exifzir valle movernent - - 368 - 3.294 3662

Trarsfers - 68 1066 30,536 132.070] -

Cieposas (125) - {75.951) - - {76,086}

At 30 June 2022 " 10533 313,071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,371

Accumulated depreciation S

Al daly 2021 4410 90,05% 414 559 1,290 - 510.318

Charge for the year 183 17120 81,141 3343 - 101802

Disposa s - - [1&2) (221 - 1403)

F¥ rovernert - - {776) - - (776)

At 30 June 2022 4,593 107,189 494,742 4,417 - 610,941

et baok value T Aol [ it

At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430

A 21 June 2021 I’Vre.'s:a:ed; 4121 227408 1;280.8?8 25998 4327/ 1,551,582

Included within tangible assets are capitalised finance cosiz directly attributacie to brnging tre asset into
use. Tne net carryng amount of assets Feld under finance leazes mcuaead in plart, machinery, fixtures and

Atngs s £51,785,000 (2021 £51 534,000 | Included in nebwork assets

opsalete eguipment and development,

15 & provision of £1,023.000 for

The Comgany had no targicle assers ar 30 June 2022 (2021 none)

Note 26 details the pricr penod ag ustments.
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MENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Unlisted
investments Total
Group - U £000 £000
Cost ana ;et i;;o}; value . - Ao n e cses 508
Al July 2621 11.000 11000
Adoitions 129,452 129452
{105,000} {105,000}
35,452 35,452
TUooc 11000
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
_E000 €000
2311678 2311678
228,300 228,300
At30 June 2022 2,539,978 2,539,978
Accumulated |mpa|rments 7 o
At 30 Jure 2027 195,312 195,312
Reversyl of imparments 195 3127 (155,312}
mpanr g - -
At 30 June 2022 e ) - o -
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2 539 978

A 'SO June 2021

g 116 366

2,539,978

2,116,366

Getails of related undertakings

are showr in note 29

Unlisteg invesiments comprise the Group's hnid ng of the memers' captal of Tendo LLF a lending

busiress, and its sharegholding in

tre inernuon of conducling a prooorion of itz Tutare trade thre

racker Trading Lmited Fern co-founded Teddo _LF .n Octoo

er 2012 with
ugh the partnersap Additons ang disposais

of Lnusted investments relate to mvestmerts and divestrnents in Terido __P 1 tne witr Fern's cash

reQuUIrgrments ana o uths

Yrpa o e, fern’s inyesimant 1t

Tne drecters do net co
Tra d’*g Limites

surpius f

sns der Tendo LUP ¢r Braceer Trading wimites to be

undcs. Fern has a sma

{ charehold ng = Sracken radimg Limitec frorm

Bracker Tradog Umitea at 30 Jure 2022 was ENG 030 June 2021 Enili

subs'dary urcerakirgs of ~erm
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AL Dume o S n o
Cash includes cash in hand and deposits repayabile on dernand

Restricted cash represents casn for waick the Group does not have immediate and direct access o for
which regulatory or legal regdrrements restrict the usé of the cash.

Group
2022 2021
‘ f . £000 . £.000
‘ 60,592 55,337
Cash at bank and in hand 256415 172478

Restricted cask is comgrised of £726,000 hed in =sarow ard £5% 866,000 of cash held in subsidiaries with

hl-armnuaal distnoutior windows.,

The Compary nad @ cash baa-ce of £6422.000 as at 30 June 2022, none of wnich was restnicted (2021

nong;.

12 50

Group
2022 2021
_ . B £oo0 . F000
:S(IS[UCI bk e o iR e e e £ v ;;.533 RS, »24,.,195,%
~uel, spare parts anc corsamatles 26,023 18,593
Property deve oprment WIF 156,918 73923

184,479 G4,711

The amount of stocks recognised as an expense dunng the ysar was £120,413,000 {2021 £41,212.000}

Included in the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock value is a orovision of £320.000 for unusable fuel
stock (2021 459 000) Including n property develonment WIS is a provision of 2928000 for warranty and
site spec-fic provisions,

There has been no impairment recognised duning the year on stock (2021 nonel. N inventory has been

cledges as secunty for lanikies (2021, nonel.

The Company had no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021, nonel.
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1% Do

Group Company

{restated}
2022 2021 2022 2021

£'000 £'000 £000 ED00

VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVV RER S o BT IS B S SRR ESLE 38 Ubo hx ok n FY ORT { HOSIMT IR B i g s nn s 0 7T

Loans and atvances Lo cusiornearns 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year

Loarns and advances 5 cus.omers 223,239 369,384 - -
Irade debtors 42,050 16,121 392 g
Arncunts owed oy related parties inote 24] - 3,950 32,950 12,751

Other debtors 20,199 24972 3,843 5008
oration tax - 6,602 2,527

Dermatye rancial nstruments incie 21) 54,409 6,469 - -
corued ncoeme 145,602 154,375 176 32,66
o " e23161 98007 39,888 L0385

Corn

Fropaymments and a

Loanz and advances to custamers, are stated nel of provisions of £13,8/2,000 {2021 £
2021

iors of E7732.0060 {202

Frepaymerits and accrued wcome are statec net of provs

No rierestis charged on amourts owed Dy group Jundertaiags, as the cutsiandirg baarces are unsecdred
and repayable on demand (2022 none).

Note 26 detads the pror pered adusimerts i

!
!
i
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L T B Ut R I I NS ST

S dmanitance xe e s b o O SRR

Bar:k loars ard overdrafis inote 16)

Trade cradiors

Cther taxaton and social secarity

Othor croditors

Arnounts due o related parties (note 24)
Finarice wases (note 16}

Cervat ve financal instruments (note 21)

AcoTuas ang deferred inCome

D R T N LI LN
NN R RN

Group Company
{restated)
2022

2021
£C00 ~ £'000

2022
£'000

2021
ED00

75,465
256,152

87752 47,386 -
58,004 23,390 76
8,161 - -
24,362 55,306 -
2,428 3147 -
- 143 -
72,087 373
CGozosa 449

16

Amounts falling due between one and five years

ETTrevs

Bank icans and gverdralts (note 16)
Firance eases (1ote 16
Dervative fnancial nstrurmants (inote 21)

Gthor creaitars

Eharmammannie s e 3 el 4o

Group
2022
£°000

2021
£G00

383,070

5,899
5,364
394,333

247297
6125

5415

258837

Amounts falling due after more than five years

Group
2022
£'000

o SRR o A REY LY RS

2021
£'000

Bani iocans and overdrafis incte 19)

Srance eases (note 16}

Derratyve financial mstrumants {niote 21)

573,416
24,676

Total creditors faling due after more than one year

992,425

e

577,235
24,495
42,772

644,502

803,339

The Compgany nas no crediters due in greater than one year

Arrounts owed o related garties are unsecured, non-interast bearing and repayabie on demrand

Naote 26 detalls tne prior period adjustiments




STATEMET

TS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

:ié FE

Group

RN

[Duein o

Due betweasr ore ard five yesrs

Dagez inv e

U’Tq” f"«D ‘Jl@"’“

2022
£'000

87,732

383,070

573416

T pesaas

T L T m———

247297

577,235

871,918

The Company had no bank loans at 30 J

The pank Icans are securead agamis:

Yiners Energy Lirncted
Cedar Encrgy and Infrastructure Limited
Flos Energy 2

Elos Energy $

Bocmerang Fnergy Len'toc
=l b,
Darlingron Pairt Salar Famm By Lranted

Meiton Renewanle Energy UK Lirmized

Dutaces W Hodzo PTY L

Flwvia Fomas armitacd

Zestec Asset Maragement Lirnited

6 month S

Interest rate 2022

xrsrgee, BEae

plus 160%
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -
Z month EURIBOR plus

1.20%, Fixed rate 1 70% 30946
12% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079
& month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348
6 49% (swap rate of 4‘59%. + 114,026
18% rnargin}
& month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718
17% + BBESY 31,614
53 2 5% non-
Y aisston tee 12,306
Fixed rate 2.5% 43

429 138w RN

1044218

ie Group with each loar as held by the subsdiary shown below:

2021

£1000

438,140

34995

295,344

103439

871918

SONA replaced LIBCR as the effect ve interbar k lending rate system from 1 January 2022
resulied nno commerca, impach o the businass

Finance leases

Tre future minimum finarce lease paymen:s

Payrmer:s due

Notlater thar one year

Carrymg amount of the llabnhty

are as foilows:

2022
. Eooo

2,428
5,899
76,461
84,788
(51 785)

The rate change

2021
£000

3165
6,196
72,013
81,375
(4,’ 609)
33,766

Tre finance leases primariy relate to a leased burdim g nd realtncare equrprment Trere are no contingent

re~ta., renews| or purchase option clauses.

securea aga:nst the leazed assets,

Tre Cormpary had no firance ieases at 30 June

Rents caya ncrease by loca inflator. Finance leases ase
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7 o e o L Lo

Decommissioning {restated) (restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
£'000 ‘ ME'OOD N ) £000

A1 July 2021 20439 20,933 41372

Inceease recogrised in profit and 'oss 21 11495 11516
Increase recogrised through otber cormnarenerisive incore - 18,202 18,202
ImipaEirment ‘ 16 - 16
‘ncreasa recognised 1IN fixed asscis 23,656 - 23656

Recognsed on subsidary acguisitons - (3.568) (3,568}
Adjustrnent in respect of pror years - (5465 (5465}
drwwinding of discount 249 - 249
Aciustment resaling to change 51 accountng ostrrate 13,373) - (3.373)

ain on trar

Ahion 15 - 15

At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620

The decommussionirg provisicn is held to cover future obligaticns o retur lanc cn wrich tnere are

operaucnal wind, siomass and solar farms. to the r original conditon The amourts are not expected t© be

s}

utiiced forir excess of 25 years,
The Company nad no provisions at 30 June 2022

Mote 26 details the prior period ad ustments.

B Ucocos Lnannn Do Lo 0 ORATTS

The Grous and Company have tne following share capital

Group 2022 2021
£'000 £000

AR A R TS MR

Allotted, called-up and fully paid

1616622 011 (2C2: 1496,755.25¢8;
Crdinary shares of £0 10 each

161,662 145,676

Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fullypaid £000 . rooo

1616622 0112021 1.496,755, 255}
Ordinary shares of L0 10 each

161,662 145,676

During the year the Croup issued 119,866,754 {2021 1,501.199,278 ) ardinary shares of £ 0 10 eacn for an
aggregate nominal va.we of £11,987000 (2021 £150,120,0001 Of tne shares issued curing the yeaar, total
consideration of £203 750000 (2921 £2,.315,595 0C0) was paid for the skares, giving rise to a premium of
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£191,763,000 (2”‘ 1/3118.000) During thoe year the Group purcha A (2021 4,442 020
ordinary shares of £0.10 each with an aggregate nom nal value cf £nil .2021i £444,000) Total ©
of £l (2021 £6.844.000) was pard for the shiares, giving rise 10 a premium of £nil (2021 £6,393

Tre Group nas adoepted predecessor accounirg princ’ples as it was forred as part of a group

recoenistruction, therefore the share capital ang snare prerium accolnt are treatea asif trey had aways

ey
ex'sted Moverrents in share capital ansing poth befcre and afier the restructiure are reported as moverments
intne Group shars

cap tal

During the year the Comoany ssued 119866 754 (2021 1,501,199,.278) ordinary shares of £0 10 each for an
aggregate nominal value of E11,987,000 (2021 £15C,120,000) OF the shares1ssued during the year, tofal
corsigeration of £203,750,000 (2022 £2,315,695,000) was paid for the shares, gving rise to a premiurm of
£191,764,000 {2021 E2.166,575,000) During ine year the Group purchased il (2021 4, 444 0205 of its own
ordinary shares of 26 1C each with an aggregate noming. value of Eruil (2021 £444.000. Towal consiceration
844,000 was pad for the sha

premim of fril (26 £6,395,050).

s & onge cass of ordinary shares The 5 on the distributicn of d vidends ana the

resayrrent of camta

Cash flow hedge reserve

—

The cas~ fiow Redge reserve 5 used to record transacuons ans ng from the Sroup’s cazh flow

hedging arrargements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arises from the difference between the far vaiue of the shares scues and the book

valles of the subsdiaries acoured

[
B4

Tre moverrent In rov-cortroiing interests was as follows

Group

Note 2022 2021
Group £'000 £'000

APLREHERS BTV RRY SHBES LS A Lbs HEE B wBBh ue b baneaun

AT July r("/l 3,724 9,570

C £ oo < 2 f . T
Sale of subsidary undortakirgs andg aco: .
; cary neeranngs o . 27 - (1.842)
of non controling irtensst

Total comprebensye ioes atinbutatle 1o
NCN-Controling interests

(6,622) {4,007

(2,901) 3721




b
4y

—

P HEGRE :
As at 30 June 2022 there were no cont ngencies across the Group or Company
2L e e
Carying amounts of financial acsets and aol. ues
Group Company
{restated)

2022 2021 2022 2621
D e e ——————— s e D e e e
Carrying amount of fmanqal assets
Debt instrurrents measured at amornsed cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767
WMeasured at far value tarougn proir and lass - 6,465 - -
Mﬂa Lrea af :a\r Janm thre 7 oth er ST IPprenansve FCOME 54,409 - - -
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measired at amorused cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16
Measured at fair value through othigr comiprehensve incorme - 42772 - -

Note 26 cetals the orior perod adusimarts
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Derivative financial instruments
The Group's financial r.sk Management seeks to rmnimise the exposure to rmarket risk, credit rsk, Uguidity
and cash fiow risk, and energy market r.sk.

aj Market risk
Energy market risk

Tre energy sector is experiencing significant turbulence and there 13 3 nsk that forecast evels o ircome ave

not achieved due to cnanges in wholesale energy prices, off-fa<e contracts or government subsicies
Changes in Gavernment policy, or regulator mtervent on may result - recucad income streams within the
group due to acd tonal leves,

Currency risk
The Group prosents its conscldated inancia: statements in stierling and conducts busness na nurmber of
otner currencics, pracipally Euro and Ausirahian doliar, Consequently, the Grous s exposed to foregn

excharce rsk aue 1o exchange rate movernants, which afect the (Group's ransactioral expenses and the
wrarslation of carming and net as

3 of s nor-sterling crerat ons
Transactional exposures
Trarnsactonal exposures anse from admimn strat ve and other expense ir currencies ather than the Group's

presentaionat currency Sierlingl The Group enters in to forward foreign excnarge contracts and foreign

exchange swaps fo miigate tre exchange rate risx for certain foreign currency payab es afd receprs. The

forward currency contracts ard Swaps are measured at far vatue, whicn s determirad us'ng valuation
chogues that uthse obzervable inputs The key nputs used in valung the denvatives are the forwsard

excharage rawes for GBF AUD and S3PEUR. On 320 June 2022 thoe fair value of trie foreign currency
contracts was an asset of £ril (2021, £6.£469,000) ard a laguty of Cnl {2021 £143.000)

Translational exposures
Baiarce sreet translatonal exposures arse or consoldation on tne retrarsiat.on of the batance sheert of
non-sterling operations mto stering, the GroJg's presentatonal currency The level of expasure s rev ewan
by management and the potential foreign exchange rnovement 1s within an acceptable level of r;sk ana

t

therefore, typicaly, tre Groap's poicy to not to actvely hedge th

Interest rate risk
The Giroup has exposure to fluctyanons in interest rates on 15 borrewings Where the Group enters into
borrowang arrangeroents with floatrg rate ingrest, a swan arrangemeant 1§ entered

..,,.\ es
3
s
O
o
—
kS
a
O
0]
]
[
>
9‘

mterest 1o be fixed s
ther 1 hedge account for iness

ransactior basis and nave eected o apply Fe ﬁgﬂ accounung for rterest

the interest in order 10 Milgate against ar increase in nterest rates The port

assessed on a case by cate basis Managerent can elect whe

arrangemerie on an indivedua

rate swaps Tne swaps are based on 3 prnc pat amouns of the loar facdilty ard matare on the same cate

&3]

8]

25t Of ﬁve years and the fair

On 30 June 2027 tre cutstanding nterest rate swaps have a maturity in ex
value 11N an azset poston o E54 409 000 (2020 sab lity of 242 £29.0001

Price risk

Tre Graun s & snor- 10 medidm-term lender © 1

1]

ceteriorat o i the level of house onces tnat affecis tn
agarst, trere s g risk that the Group mray not recoun ils ful exposdre Tris s mitigated

rature of the loans ana the conservative level of loan
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b} Credit risk

Custcrmer cradit nsk is mitigaled through the Group's credit control policies, which are in place to ensure
thiat our customers have an approornate cred © hustory and are monitores o an ongong Bass

¢) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk are managed by ensuring that sufficient cazh is avalaole 1o fund continuing and “uture operations
Liquidity risk arises on bank loans In piace across the Group and is managed through careful monitonng of
covenants and sensible wevels of debt Borrowing 1s on a .ong-term basis, whereas our revenue is recaived
throughout the vear, as well as inferest and recempt%cms on our short-term oan book, Cash flow risk is
maraged through orgong cash flow forecasting to ensure receipts are sufficient 1o meet labilities as they
fall due

e ST S T AP SR

AT the year ena the Craup had capral commitrments as follows

2022 2021
Group ) ) £000 £000
Contracted for but not presvded in these firar. 347,254 90,156
Undrawn faciit-es on loans (o borrowers 173,600 92.68%

G June the Group hao total ‘cture m nimurm lease payrnents urder non-cancailable operating rases
as follows:

2022 2071
Land and Other Land and! Othier
buildings buildings
s e 2 L000 i 5200,
Fayrnents due ' S
Not later than one year 8,707 661 8,031 748
Later than ore year and not later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1686
years
Later than frve years L ) 95,»664» = ] 18 93? s
135,998 1,387 157432 2444

The Group had ne cther off-balance sheet arrangaments (2021 none).

Under sections 334A and 479A of the Comipanies Act 2606, the paren: company Fern Trading Limited has
guaranteed ail cutstanding lizbilites on those companias taking the exemption © which the subsidiaries list
G pages 79 to 90 were :ijec to at the 30 June 2022 untl tney are satisfied in full. These lisbilities total
£915m Such guarantees are enforceable against Fern Trading Limited by any person to whormr any such
liapilty is due.

Tre Cemrpary had no capital o other commitments at 30 June 2022
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23 0 rm i T o se o T En o e

On 11 July 2022, Fern Trading Deveiopfr‘em Limited "FTOLY, & SubSldiary cftre Gmup successtEIy sold
Daslington 2oirt Holdco Pty Lirmn

Octopus Ausiralia Master Trust, A sr-all profit o

on the sa.c

-

Onthe lst o 22, the Group acaured nights 1o a L25m creds voucher and the rignt 1o use

rnobile hce

UL< via a Strateg ¢ Cornecivity Agreemert, thus mawarg the first step wowards
bacorming an mobile virtuat network operator

28 T e s e

Uncer FRS 102 33 1A disclosures noed not be given of rensactons eniered rto betwaon 1w or more

H
H
i
i

members of 3 Group, prov ded that any sabsiclany which s a sarty 1o the transacton & whaoly owned by
such a member

Doarng the year, fees of £77534 500 (2021, £61.154.C0C) were cnarged 0 the Growp oy Octopus
4 b

Investrments Limeed, 2 reztog party due o itz signifcant influerce over e entity. GCtoous Investments

Limited was recharged legal and orofessiona. fees totating £13,155 (2021 216,000) by t-e Group. At lne
=) o

year end, an amount of £5 500 (2621, £213.000) was cutstand.rg which s ncluced nrade creditors.

Tre Group s entitled to a proft share as & resalt of 115 irvestment 0 Tend

ed party dug to K
management personnel in common. i1 2022 a share or’ profit equal 1o £ ?4 9,000 (2021 £44%,000) nas ;

been recognised Ly the Gro.p. Al the year end, tne Group nas an interest in the member's capitat of

£35452,0C00 (2021 £17.004 ”fhﬂ and accrued mcome due of £5 276,000 (2027, £479,000;

The Group engages i1 lendimg activives wh'cn inciude baances grovided o related parvec Regardng

entites with vey maragsment persennal in comrmor. loans o £63,490,000 (2021 £173 222 0C0), accrued
income of 19,789,000 (2021 £26,20%.C00; and deferreq incorne of £nil {7021 £101L,C00) were cutztaraing

e
at year end Durng tne year interest income of £7160,000 (2022 £17581,000) anc fees of £354,000 (2021
£5356,000) were recognisec i reaucn to 17ese (cars

Dur'ng the year thie Grous acgul - power companies from comuoanies managed by OCiopus :

=
p
o
=y WD
~
a
W
44
=
<0

Investmenis Limised, 3 related party Sece note 27 a) for detalls of the comparies acguired,

As at 30 June 2022 £ni (2021 £3,550,275) was owed to the Comupany by Bracken Tradirg Liritad, a related
party by <ey ranagement personnel in cornron

Orther than the ransactions disclosed acove, the Company's Sther rested party tra~sachons were with itz

wholly cwrnec supsidiary mertters of tre G CUD
|
BE . sy Toemro Ty ;
:

Ir the opir.on of the arreciors, tnere 12 ro uwlf mate cortrolling party or carert Company

£ nansr ie

HR gk
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26 oL A e

a) Group structuring review

We have congucten a review of prior years’ accolnting treatment of intercompany restruciuring In this

review rmanacerent identfied unamortised gocawell balances n relation to these transactions. We have

adjustad the previous yaars to reflect the implementation of amortsation backdated to when the relevant
transactions occurred The accumislated irnpact for the goodwil amariisation in the profT and ioss for 2022

was 287 (20200 £5.3m) the movernent of £2 7m nas been restated throughout the 2021 comparative

numbers. A summany of tae imoact of the correciion 15 provided below:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)

Group £000 £'000 £'000
Goadvall 583,988 (5,335) 578653
retained earmings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumutated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group ) o o £000 £000 ) E'QGO
Goodwill 602,711 (8,049) 554662
Retaimed carnings {122,520} 8,049 (115,871)

As part of the review of the intergroup restructuring mertiored above, maragement idenufiad one of the

restructures had been incorrectly accounted for in a sub section of the group. N further errors were
discoverad n the raview. The accumulated impact for goodwill amortisation in the profit and ioss for 2021

was £2.5m (2020, £1 3m). the moverment of £1.2m has been restatea throughout the 2021 comparative

fqumibers This ‘'mpact o the 2020 opening retained earnings was offset by 22 Im wntter back against bad

debt exgenses Management have corrected the wdentified error with the followng impact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)

Group e £'000 __£'000 £'000
ool - T 583.588 29,183) 5546805
Retained earnings 41,185 899 42084
Sebtors 842545 (2,724} 839,825
Creditors: arnounts falling due within one year (232,813} 455 (232.317)
Fired assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group ‘ o ~__£'000 £'000 _ E000
Goodwilt I T 0271 (27.963) 574748
Retained earnings (123,920} {321) (124.241)
Demtors 50,726 (2.724) 598002
Craeditors: arnounts falting duc within one year (207,318} 496 {206.822)
Fixed assets 1.551.170 30,512 1,581,682
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b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have conduciad a review of all consaliaat o= entrias a7 subsections of ne grous. We Fave ideraficd an
error relating o 2019 when deferres tax agjustments were eniered as a consolidation entry and had
subsequenty Not been reversed We have chacked ne lax per subsidiary account ana have esured that the

relevant salanc

25 are Correct. T he error was nosted at a corcoudated lavel 07ty and Nas Now Deen Correc ac!

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group £000 £000 £000

Sthabhnmeosaans & TTORANIO00OLI RS R R (L L 2R e MBS s omaan smmaa a2t s N AR RS A o0 B TROEUE S M Db akh s 2L D T RAREOERT R

Retained earmirgs 41,185 {4,764} 36421

Craditers amaourts falling gue w tnim ore year (232813 4764 (228,649

Tris has a knocx o9ect int June 2021 the restated Galances are as foliows:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Grqup NNNN E'GOQ

Retained earnirgs (123,920 14,764} (128.684)

Crodiors amrcanis faling cue wiin ore yoear (207.318) 4754 (202,554)

In prepanng the tax compuotations for 2022, the Groug's tax advisors have nouced an overicoked

assurgtion Ir previoys years tax corsohidanon calcuiations Within the previously urrecegnized deferea fax
assels held wiir in tne group somes were ava lal e on & consoidated lavel to offsal the Groun's deferred tax
Lability On anindwicual compary basis the deferred tax in previcus years haa teen correcily recogrisca A
part of these deferrad azsets are in relat.on to cask fow hedges hela witmin the group wh'ch are accournieo
for with r other comprehensive mcome Tre zoounulated inrpact for the ax charge in the proht and loss
for 2021 was £15m (2020: £15 3m) the maverert of 300k has been rectated throughout the 2041

comparative tumiers

A summary of the impac: of the correction s provided below:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

go00 E'000 £000

Group

wed earrirgs 41,185 (15,299) 25,886
Casn flow hedge reserye 63,837 {2.875) 59,962
19174 (17,310}

Defotred fax crovisions (36,484}
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Year ended Accumuiated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated} {restated)}
R £'000 0 Ko
Cash flow neage reserve 17,058 {2.119) 14,979
Ceferred tax provisions (38,145} 17,212 (20,933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated} {restated)
GrouP e s o EOOO £000 £'000
De[]weo ‘eéfnir-@g ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ E—— AR B s s e e LR 41185 - W(15$829)a 2;735)6 .
Coonwin 583,588 134.517) 549471
Ceotors 842 549 (2.724) 839,825
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Defarre tax Drovisons {56,484) 19,174 (17.31G)
Cash floyw necne regserve 63837 (3,875} 59,962
Creditors arnourts falling due within one year (232,813) 5.255 (227.554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group o £'000 y - E'OOO ) £000
Retained e2mings e azio200 a2z (136.048)
Goodw:l! 602,711 (36,011 566,700
Debters 600,726 (2,724) 598,002
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
Defarrod tax provisions (38,145) 17,212 (20,933}
Casn fow nedge reserve 17,098 (2,119 14,979
Creditors, arnounis (allirg due within one year {207,318 5.259 (202,059
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B o oo

a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 July 2022, the Group arquired 9 eserve power s'tes through the curchase of 100% of tne sthare capital
for consideralon of £18.

The folicwang tasles surnmarse the consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of the assets acouired,
and e labilites assumed at the acguisition date.

Consuderatuon - £'ooo

SRR d E e et AR R o maeas boby

Total consnderauon "

Details of tha fair value of the net assets acgures and goodwill ansing are as foliows

Book vatue Adjustments Fair value

E0CQ EODO - Eo00

Frced assets 80,788 (26,55 52235
lrarte ard Ciner recenvables 264 - 294
Prasayments 635 - 635
Cach and cash eguvalerts 7858 : 7508
Tracle ana other crediwon 12.,206) - (2,206)
Loarns (58.816) - (58,814
: - - 28553 (2855®) -
G SOl S o 7 -

Net assets acqu

Total cons:deration -

Goocwill resulting frorm tre business combiraticn was il

Tre conssldates statement Of corrprehensive neorne for the year mciudes £45 803,200 reverus and a
profit after tax of LEEE 000 in respect of this acqu.siton

e
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b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 722 October 2021, tfm Gfous acqurea Coveryard Limited and itz subsidiary through the purchase of
100% of tre share capit r corsideration of £13,414 0070

The foillowing takles summarise the consideranon paid by tne Group, the fair value of assets acquired, and
liabilt'es assumed at the acqguisition date.

Consuderatlon £'G06

S RO R LN DO N R B £ RS A MR HE AR B MR BB SRS i BB TR I o bbb Al b b e ubi ek ruthana  wamweabow o we s ohdan T BE P 3T NS BOTRUERINEAT AR GY DA SR

Cash 12,377
Cirectly atincutable costs 7 - S l 037
Total consideration 13 414

Detalls of the far va.e of the rer assats acgured and goodw L arising are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
) E'OOG £'000 £'000
;x;q;g:mg NP . 56(5 e 569w
Trade and coner recevables 52 - 52
Prepayments and accrued income 193 - 193
Trade and other creditors (467 - {467}

Net assets acqmred 347 - 347
13 067
Totat con5|derat|on 13 414

JOO" wi

Goodwili resutting from the business combination was £13,067.000 and nas ar estimated usaful 1 fe of 25
vears, reflect.ng the ifespan of the assets acauired

he consoidated statemert of comprabiensive income for the year mcwdes £nil of revence and a loss
P ¥

=
hefare tax of £123.000 in respect of this acquisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

¢} Dulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2021, the Group acqured Dulacca WF moidoo 2TY La three subsidianes througn the :

an
purchase of 100% of the share captal for corsideranon of £215,680,000

The following tables summarise the consideraton paid by the Group, tre ‘ar value of the assels acgdea,

and e attne acqusition date A list of the entities acgurred imcluded 1» note 29

Cons:deratlon AUD'000 Exchange Rate £000

AT BRELEREYSINY Lhrs mmunsusus snn ane o S T IONANALEU S AP PR LR S E AR R by s dee s v § 77T T RIS IS MR ST bR RN B S AR B ey T e $YOT) EERRAGSEE A SAR LT

( D h 217557 18904 115,085
Dlre"*ty atinoutable cos's 1126 1.8904 595

Total consideration 218 683 115.680 .

Detais of the farr valuae of the net assets acqured ang intanagible arising are as foilows
Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value ‘
o AUD‘OOO AUD'000 AUD 000 £'000 i E'GDO E'ODQ )

Fixed assots 10/6& - 107633 JG,QS? - 56,937 i
abnes 13,131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5,357 :
Cash 3ng casn equivalents 103.072 - 103,072 54,525 - 54525
ch (JP‘(—rrf‘rj rcor (10, 952) - - (5 733) ‘
wi.vlw.l,owéﬁ- - R 111 026

v . 4?54
Total con5|deratlon 7 S S 213683 - o 115 680

Trade and otrner rece

Ac mu =

Net assets acquired 209 884 _

Ir ;r*m sle

Irtangibles resultimig fromr the asset purchase was £4.654,000 and has an ostimated useful ife: of 30 years,
g b

reflecting tre lifespan of the assets acoured

The consoldaen statement ¢f ’or‘r‘pfehenave reome for the year incluces £0il of revendae and a oss after

nt
i
tax of £237.000 1in respect of this acguisit or. f

st wga%

s il :t,a,w:z,,z*gu

E i £ 0at hhub o4 benh
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangernent Lirnited a project sources for rooftog
solar, through tne purchase of 100% of the snare capital for consideraion of £4,765,000

The foliowing tables summarise the consideraticn paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acquired, and
babilities assumed at the acquisition date

Consideration £000

Cash 3672
[efered consideration : -

Directly attributable costs 1093

Total consideration 4,765

Detalls of the far vaue of the net assets acquired and guoawill arising ace as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

£'000 ~ £'000 £'000

Trade ana other creditos 574) - (574)
Tracle ana other receaivables 400 - 400
Cash and cash egunvalents 1,018 - 1,019
Other loarns (48] - (46

‘I}ietassetsacqurireidr S . I 955 = 955

Goodwid - 3,810

Total consideration 7 4,765

Coodwil. resulting from the business combination was £3,.810,000 and nas an estimated useful life of 10
years, reflecting the estmated lifespan of the assets acguired

The consclidated statermnent of comprehensive incorme for the year includes £198.000 of revenue and a lass
before tax of £494,000 in respect of tnis acquisitiorn.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

€} Elivia Homes acquisition
D 23 May 2022 the Group

~00%

O the s-are canita: for consid

clowing taoles summarze the

ities ascumed &t 1he acguisition

Consideration

[

0 acguired Elivia Hoidngs Lmites and its supsiciaries, through tne purcha

erat:on of EB],E@A,JUU

/ the Groug, the “ar va.us of assers
ncuded in note

]

date. A st of the entites acquired are 9

I TR s v e s T AV ERASO M by B ARSSAAR A b e ks s

B

s acguired, and

£000

manage a1

30,999

31,684

Book Adjustments
values
EDOO - E’DOO

Mixerd 5358100

Intangible assets

Stoor

Irade and Giher deltors
Cast and Cash equivalems
Accrials and deferred income
Frov.eions

Deferred tax

Trade ani Othr«r o rt'”torr

Net assets acqulred
(SOOI

Total consideration

el assets scguired and goodwll arising 2

418
11,767 -
69939 -

2,609
11602 -
{423} -
(330) -
5,000 (1400

31,533

et

Fair
vaiue
_£000

412‘3’,‘“
11,767

£9,935
2609
1603
(420}
(520}
4,600
694535)
30,133
155
31,654“

Gooaw Hl resltirg from the businegs

years, reflecting tre lfespan of the assets acg)

mprehencive income for tre year 1rc

o cornbinaton was L2 551,000 and has ar estimates ussfiy i

Hres

cesreverue o

acguistior
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Cur reported results are pregared in accordance win United Kirgdom Accounting Standards, incuding
Financigl Reporting Standard 102, as detaled in the Finarcial Siatermerts starting on page 35 of the Annual
Report Ir rneasuring our performarce, the financial measures that we use include those that have teen
gerved from cur reported results In order 1o elim:naic ‘actors that distort yezr-on-year corrpansons 1hase
ace considered non-GAAP firancial measures

Net debt
We grovide net gest in addt'on o cash and gross gebt as a way of assessing oJr overall cash posmon andat
s computed as foliows:

2022 2021
Note £000 £000

R A ] A DR P AT RREHO oW KPR RS E HRROE Y AR DRAGZRY SR B UR B x btk v RER R 0 b e b Ak s wan” 3 SPTE IR S8 = aens

Bark Ioars ang overdraflts 16 1044218 871918
14. 1% 5364 -

1,049,582

Other loans

Grossdebt

Cash at & din nane 11 (256,415) (172,478)

Net debt 793,167 699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA
Earnirgs before interes:, tax, depreciation ard armnortissbon 'E

‘R

TIDA s calcuated by adjusting orofit afier

tax for interest, tax, deprecation and arncrisation, in additior to incomre and expenses that do rolrelae o
the day 10 day cperat'ons of tre Group We provide EBITDA in additior o profit after tax a5 it allows Us 1o
AsSEss our parfcrmance without the effects of fiinancing and capral expenditures

The folow:nng tanle deia

2 UNe %’j Listrients made o the reported resy s,

{restated}
2022 202t
‘ Note __£000 EOGO
p;owﬁt;uoss)forthe ﬁnanmaiyear s e s ot e s smsnseas 3£31{} (310121
Acd
Arnorasation of intangsle sssets 2 37849 37704
Irpairrrent of infaog 21 7913 -
Depreciat or of tang bie assems 7 01802 84,697
Interest payable and ariar ceperises 5 33554 36,067
Exceptionat iterr:s 1.105 -
Tax 7 16,294 8,349
Lass
Ircome frorm othior fxed asset mvestnents {5,249 (449)
Shiare of operanng proft injoint verture - (L1755}
Profit or disposa’ of subs diaries (29,532} (78.568)
IP erast 1= eivabie and sirrilar ncorme 6 {130) (997

EBITDA ' ‘ 194,916 104036

Note 26 detalls the prior penod adiustments

1
{
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
25

Detals of the subsidiary undertak ngs are as foliows:

Country of Class of Principal

Name e moninCOrpOration  shares Holding activity . oo
Abbots Rupton Soiar Erergy Holdng Limited™ UK Ordinary  100%  Helding cornpany
Adaurda Solar SPV 1 Lmted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Agricol-z SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Al Networks Lirited™ UK Grdinary 100% Holding cormpany
Aliprirts = bre Limited™ UK Ordirary  100% g‘gguncf"t;‘f”‘
Augnencarroch Eriergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Adquiine Land Compary Lritedt UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Avenue Solar Farmr Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Banbury Power Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bausolare 5 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bansolare 7 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beotloy Eergy Jimiied” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Beighto~ trergy Limited UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Bemnneun Wird Farm Lte™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy genaration
Belihouse Energy Limited® UK Ordinary 100% Eriergy generation
Birck Tstate Soar Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Biaby Sowar Farm Lirmimed” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
BNRG IOW Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bolam Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bocomerang Energy Lim ted UK Ordinary 100% Hcolding company
Boreas Energy L mied™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Bration Flem'rng Lirmited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Breck Sclar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
E:,('T:;OO/Q solar Developments Hoiings UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn ¥r Odyn Solar Developments Limitea™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxion Reserve Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Caicias Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company

Carx Lirm ted® Ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

A R R R ki b bammmrnrs ¢ o e aanan Y0P S TS Tomn

Caswell Su ar Farm Limited”
Cathken Erergy Lirmited™

Caus:lgey Limeg™

Cedar Energy ana Infrastruciure Limited
CEPE Borceronna SARLT

Centrale Eolienne de Producton d Erergie de

D

rancho s SARL?

CEPE de |3 Sz'esse SARLT

(

C.EPE de Lacoribz (Centrale Eollienns de
Production d' Energee de Lacombe) SARLT
CEPE de Marsanng SAR_’

CEPE Haat du Sauie”

CEPE de la Rocne Guate Riv eres SARL
CEZPE du pays de 5t Seine SARLY
CERSSAS

Cnelson Meadow Energy Limited”
Crushon Solar Farm Holdings Limited™
Chttering Sclar Two Limited™
Cllgwyr Energy Lirmted”
Clarn Farm Limitea™

Claramond Sclar SPY 1 Crmaled
CLP Developments Lirmitesd”
CLP Envirogas Lim ted™

CLP Services umited”

CLPE 1991 Limuted”

CLPE 1999 Limited”

CLPE Holdings uimited”

£ Proects 2 Limigea”

LPE Projects I Lirted”

PR ROCC - Lmited”

@
™
A

ROC =2 omited”

CLPE RGC - 3 Limited”

Country of
mcorporatlon

o R A5 -

UK
UK
UK
UK

France

France

France

France

Frarice
Frarice
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Class of

_shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crcinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Principal

Holding acthlty

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
180%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1607%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

SRS TRES A R R i kot e n e e g 2R3y

Energy geﬂeration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company

Erergy generat:on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy gereraticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Haolding cornpany
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant cormpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of Q&M
Services

Dormant company
Dormant cormpany
olding company
Haldng company
Helding company
clding compary
olding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

I s s e ATICOTPOFation  shares Holding activity
CLPE ROC - 2A Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genaration
CLPE ROC - 4 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE RDC — 44 Limitad™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Clyne Power Limited™ Ui Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Colsterworth Energy _imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Connon Bridge Erergy Limriteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cotesbaen Energy Limined” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Cour Wind marmr {Scotland) Limn teg® UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cracnel Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
Crayfern Hormes (South Coast) Limited ! UK Ordirary  100% Ej’jfgpgigc‘l
Crayfers Limited'” UK Ordinary 100% gggﬁg?gt;};t;;gs
Craytern Suniey (Shnfeid) Linuted! UK Ordirary  100% gj‘{jfg?;?;g;
Craymarss Lrted™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Cressing Solar Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culvery Power Limited” UK, Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Cynon Power Limited”™ 1K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
afer Reserve Power Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dairy House Soiar Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Deendae Farm Solar Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Doveryard Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Orapers Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
D.lacca Energy Project Co PTy [ta'? Australia Ordinary 1007% Energy generatian
Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Ligt? Australia Crdinary 100% Holding company
Dulacca Energy Project Holdao Co PTY Lig!? Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culacca WF Holdco PTY Ltg*? Australia QOrdinary 100% Holding company
Dyffryn Srodyn Lim.ted™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Eakring Limited” UK Ordinary 1500% Holding company
Eiecsol Camargue SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol France 7 SARL? France Qrdinary 90% Energy generation
Fiecsol France 11 SARL? France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Eiecsol Frarce 15 SARL? France Ordinary 160% Energy generation

Elecsol France 19 SARL® France Ordinary 1600% Energy generation




)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name N o incorporation shares Holding activity )
Elecsoi France 22 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecss. France 24 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecso France 25 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecso. France 28 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elersol France A1 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol Haut Var SaRU? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ehos Erergy 2 France SAS France Crrdinary 100% Holding company
Elioz Energy 2 Limted UK Ordinary 1G0% Helding company
Elos Energy 3 France SAS7 France Ordinary 100% Haolding company
Elics Energy Holdings 2 Limates”™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
tlios Fricrgy Baldings 2 Limitea™ UK Crdinary 1C60% Holding cormpany
Elos Energy Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Elos Renewable Energy Lim.ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
- . Construction of
via Dievelon : ance _mient r % s
Elivia Develoornent Ninance _mited UK Ordinary 100% domestic bultdings
Ordinary Financial saervices
Elrvz Holdings Limited UK Deferred 100% Pt STVEES
holding companies
Preference
, . Construction of
Flriia Homes ICertral Limitan! rdi % LTS
thvia Fomes (Certral) Limites LK Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
. ' . . Constructicn of
via Homes {Gormant 2; Lirmed™! { [ 0%
Elvia Homes (Cormant 25 Lireed UK Ordinary 100% dornestic buildings
Elvia Haorres (Grange Road ™ imitag™ UK Crdinary 100% COHSUUCUOG O.f
) ) ' ) domestic buildings
- e . Devetoprment of
Elivia Homes (Netley) Limited: - 0% o .
via Homes {(Netley) Limited UK Ordhinary 160% building projects
. N . Construction of
Eiv'a Homes (Scouthern) timitea UK % ) L
iva Homes (Southern) tirmit K Crdinary 100% domestic buildings
) \ Construction of
wia Hormes (Surb or) Lrnited . rdinan % ‘ :
Elvia nomes (S ioni Lirrited Uk Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
Eliva Homes Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Dev?topmer_ﬂ of
buillding projects
S : Development of
via Morih Lim tad! O 0% o
Elivia Morth Lim ed UK Ordinary 100% bullding projects
Construction of
. domezbc buildings
vig Oxfora mited- 1K ! GO% A
Elivia Sxfora o mite K Ordinary 160 Buying and seling of
own reat estate
) .. . i f
Elivia Sowth Limited - LK Crdinary 100% Construction o

dornestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of

Holding _activity

y?ﬂfwm incorporation shares

Elviz Soutkern Limited-! UK Ordinary 100%
tlicarmbe Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Energy Power Resources Limited™ LiK Crdinary 100%
EPR Eiy Limited” UK Ordinary 100%
EPR Eye Lirmitea™ UK Ordinary 100%
EPR Glarford Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
EFR Rerewable Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
EPR Scotland Limited®™” UK COrdinary 100%
EPR Thetford Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100%
Eucalyptus Energy =oidings timited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Eucalystas Snergy Limited” UK Ordinary 100%
Feltwell Energy Limited” LK Ordinary 100%
Fern Energy Cour Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Energy Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Ferri Energy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Ferr Eneray Wind Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Fiore Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Healthcare Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100%
Ferr Infrastructure Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Ferr Renewable Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Rooftop Solar {A) Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Rooftog Solar (BEBDI™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Rooftog Sclar (Zesteg) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fern Trad' ng Development imited™ UK Ordinary 1002
Fern Trading Group Lirited UK UK 100%
Fern UK Power Developments Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fibropnos Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Four Burrows Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Fraisthorpe W nd Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%

Principal

RS R B SR A R PR 8

Construction of

dormestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Energy generation

Energy project
developrment and
managemernt
services

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy genaration
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Haolding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Hoiding company
Holding company
Supply of fertiliser
Energy generztion

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

T AR 493888 b O LR ARRLL R v s i s

Garlaff Energy Lirmred®

Giganet Fipre Ltd™

Giganet Lirnited”

Glerchamber Wird Energy Limited™*

Crange Wind Farm Limitea™”
Guardbride 52 z.0.0°
Harbourne Power Limied™

Hayrmaker (Mo ant Ml Ltd™

Haymiaxer (atewona) Holdings Limied”

Haymaksr (Nateweood; cid”™

Haymaker {Oa<lards) Holdinas L myted™

Haymaker {Cakards) Lid”
ilelm Fower 2 Limiteg™
Helm Power mited™
Higher Knapp Farrm Limited”™
Hill End Farm Lirmites™
Haollamoor Lmiten™

Hutl Reserve Power Lirited™
Hursit SPY 1 Limited™
Immirigharn Power Lrited ™

Irwell Bower Lirmnitec™

Jarneson Road Energy Limited™

Jurassic Fisre Holangs Limitea™

Jurassic Fbre _imitoo
ol CGower imied”
Lariga™ Fower L red™
Lankarm Solar Lir ted™
Little ¥ Solar Limited™

Littleton Soar marm Limited™
LLU Communicatons Lig™

Laadon Power Limitea™

Country of Class of Principat
incorporation _ shares Holding activity e
UK” ‘ Ordinary IOG% Dormant company
UK Ordinary  100% ;gjﬁ&m

UK Ordinary  100% ;'g;uietfc‘;f’k

UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Poland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1060% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 130% Halding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding cornpany
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Hotding compary
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generat.on
IJK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 90% Haolding company
UK Ordinary  90% S;’Sﬁf;f“

UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Eneray generat'on
UK Ordinary 100% {F)lf)orsur;?g;ork

UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

healthcare services

Country of Class of Principat
N e e e _incorporation shares  Holding _activity
Lovedean Limited”™ - UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Luminance Soiar Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Ml2 Sowtons Lirmited™ UK COrdinary 100% Holding company
Manston Thorne Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Marcn Energy Lirniteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Marden Power Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 1605 Energy generation
Marigy Tnatcn Solar Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Mezdows Farm Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Me'bourn Solar Lrited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Meiton LG Energy Limmired™” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Meiton LS Holding Limeed™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG ROC Limiteg™ LUK Crdinary 100% /C\;S;Etpfjjmg
Meion Renewabie Energy (Holdings) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewalie Znergy Newco dmited” LK Qrdinary 100% Haolding company
Meiton Renewalrie Energy UK Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Miil Hil Farm Solar Limnsred™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation 1‘
Mirgay farm Holding Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Helding company %
MSP Decoy Ltd™ LK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation ‘
MSF Strete Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Tregassow Limsted™ UK Grdinary 1003 Energy generation
MTS Hatchlands Sclar Lid”™ UK Ordinary 1002 Energy generation
Nevern Power Limiteg" UK QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
New Row Farm umited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Newlands Sclar Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation ‘
Minnis Farm Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 1003 Energy generation
North Zerrott Fruit Farm Liraited™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation :
Northwich Powser tirmted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Motos Erergy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Cgmore Power Limited™ 1K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cldnall Erergy Recovery Holdings Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 1002 Holding company
Cne Ashford Healthcare Lirstad UK Ordinary 89% ig\(i;is;;iervéces
One Hatheld Hosoital Lirited UK Ordinary 30% Provisian of
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Name
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Cne Healtncars Partners Lirmted

Crta Wedgenil. Lolar Foldings Limyed”™

Orta Wedgenil. Sclar Limired”™
Falfreys Barton Lirmted™
Parciau Hodings Limsited”™
Parc an irmited™

Fark Broadband Limited”

Prarmat So.ar 2 Ltg”

Fitchiord {(Condover Arfelc & Stockbatloh)
Limited”

Pyms Lane Solar Lte™

frangeford Care Limited™
Rangeford Cnerisay Limitea™
Rangeford Cirencesier smited”

Rargeford Dok Limitea™
Rangeford Hodings Lmited™

Rangzford Pickennag Limited”

Rkangeford RAP L mited™”

ueens Park Road Energy Lirmitad”

Rangeford Retirement Living Holdings Ltd™

Rangeford Stacleford Lirmited”™

Rezches Farm Lirmited”™
Redlake Power Limnea”

Rysion Estate Lirmited™

ey Power Lirmitea”

SFP Fibre Lirmites®

Country of Class of
jncorporation shares

UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
IJK Crdinary
IJK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
France Crrdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary

85%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100

2

100%

100%

100%

100%

a

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal

Holgiqg activity

Holding company
Holding company
Energy gereration
Energy generaticn
Halding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy gereration

Energy generaton
Holding comparty
Fnergy generation
Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement wvillage

Retirament village
developrnent

Refirerment village
development

Retrrerment village
developrment

Holding company

Retirernent village
developrment

Retirement village
development

Holding company

Retirement village
development

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Country of
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Singrug Hold ngs Limited™
Singrug Limited™

Six Hils Lare (Fagdae) Limiteg™
Skewsrooke Energy Limr ted™

slaugntergate Limvited”

Snetterton Renewable Power Fuels Limiten™

Snetiertor: Renewable Power Hald ngs Lrmited”

Simetterton fernewable Powee |irnmed”
Sciarf P0G SARLY

Solarf SPO% SARLT

Soiarb SPG2 SARL®

Solarfi SPU4 SARL

Sclarh SPOS SARL®

Sclarfl ZPOS SARLY

Selarfi SP1C SARLY

Scuthzomios Faqr Lirnied™

St Asaph Power Lirniteg”

Steadfast Farknouse Scolar Lirmited™
Steadfast Rudge Solar td™

Steadfast Shipton Belrnger Solar Limited”™
Stellar Power Limitea™

Stoneyhil: Energy Lirmted”™

Suns Energy Limited™

Summrerston Energy Lirnited?

Suniey Crayferr Lavant LLP™
Swish Fibre Contractng Limiteg®
Swish Fibre Lirmizeg®

Swish Fiore Networks Lig?

Swish Fibre Services dirmited®

Swish Fibre Yorksre®

Swish Trading Limited™

incorporation

UK
UK
LK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
France
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of Principal

shares  ...Holding activity
Ordmar] 100% Holding compary
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Qrdinary 1007% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% i:"(gply of biormnass
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 150% Energy genergtion
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% tnergy generation
Ordinary 100% E£nergy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MA 50% NA

Ordinary 100% Sggﬁ;ﬁ:rk
Ordinary 80% Holding company
Ordinary  100% ;ggurg;gfrk
Crinary  80% ;Egsuncetgffk
Ordinary 100% :;irt;rfjuréeﬁtc\.:;ork
Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Country of Class of Principal

Name . Incorporation  shares  Holding activity e

GC Solar 102 Limited™ o MlkJ‘K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
TGC Solar 107 Limited™ K Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
TGC Selar 68 Limited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
TGC Solar &3 Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
The Fern Power Company Lirmited™ LUK Ordinary 100% Holding company
The Hollies Solar Farmn Cirmiged™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy gengration
Thoresby Estate (Budoy) Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Tilingharr Power urrited” UK Ordinary 100% Einergy generation
Tochilis Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Iredown Fanm Lrnited™ W] QOrdinary 100% Energy generation
Turves Solar Limied™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LKSE 15 Solar Cimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genearation
Unitea Mines Friergy ameed” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fibre netwaork

VOSE Led” UK Ordinary 100% production
Victona Solar Lim wed” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Viners Energy Lim ted UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
VirrA §imitea” UK Ordirary  100% ;‘gdeu‘“cffg;ork
voltafrance 01 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Voltafrange 0% SARS France Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
Voltafrarce 13 SARL® France Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Voltafrance SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Vorboss Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Vorboss S inc? USA Ordinary  100% ;’forgulff;\’nork
Wadsvack Greer Limited™ UK Ordinary  100% zze’i’igf“ vilage
Wadswick Grean Property Services _imited” UK Ordinary  100% ::;‘;‘;‘ffgf@?e
Warringtor Fower Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Waterion Solar Bark =oldings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Waterloo Solar Park wmiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Week Farm 2 Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Westwoeod Power cmited™ UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation

Westwsod Soar Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gerneraticn
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Country of Class of Principal

Name @ _incorporation shares Holding activity . . .
N?* Ordm Energyﬂ Limuted™ . UF S Ordnary 10G% Erergy generation
Whart Power Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiddon Farm Limired” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wwirinrey Hill trergy Lirmted™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Wincelle Solar Haldings Linuted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolvernampton Power Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
fryce Croft Wind Farra Urrited?™” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Bradford Lirited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Hullavington Holdings Limited™ K Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Huillavingtor Uimitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WIE RPanicwall rites” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WEE Pyde Drove Limized™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Zester Azset Managernent Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generatiorn
Acquired after year end Date

Fern Roofiop Solar (BBD) Lreeea T agjose0ze
Cuckoo Internet Lid 31/08/2022
Yanfi Diglal Limiced 13/07/2022
40hH Lirited 22/11/2022

Subs-diaries exemps frorm audit by virtue of 54804 of the Companies Act 2006
TSubsigianes exernut rom audit by virtue of 54734 of tne Corrpanies Act 2006
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Dtssqlved or sold

LIS

Date

Abevmre a o TS SRaweess $Urr REe L 2T Musmmenss SR e e e, T RRRRES

the year and up

ti sigr

Beirneur Hct 20/07/20zl
Ridge W.rd Acquisitior Limited 20/07/2021
Fern Erergy RudgeWind Acquisiians Limited 1470972021
Ferr Energy RicgeWind Holdings Limited 21/08/2021
Fernt Energy ~arnersh ps Holaings Lirmitsd 21/09/2021
Fraistnorpe {Hoding) imited 29/03/2022
oY Oldhall Energy Recovery uimited 13/09/2022
Comm?z2i Lid 15/09/2022
Darlingten Foint Holdes Py Limited 08/07/2022
Darlirgton Point Sotar Farm Pty Uimited 08/07/2022
Darlrigten Pomnt Subholdco Pty Limized 08/07/2022
Norgic “ower Developmenrt Limnited 2311272021
Voyrinkargas Wand Farm Oy 2301272021
Saunamaa ¥Ynd Farm Oy 2311272021

The reyisierad office of all corrpanes usted above s ot 6th Floor, 33 Ho'horn, condon, Englanc, ECIN 247
except for thiose set our below”

I ol Grzybowska 2/29, 00-131, Warsaw, Peland

Z. Pirsent Masons LLP, Capnal Sguare, 58 Morrson Strect, Ednburgh, Scotlana, ERS 8BS

2 1 West Regect Street, Glasgow, G2 LAP

4. 22 rue Alprorse de Newville, 75C17 Pans, Frarce

5 Otn Flocr, 2 Grard Caral Sauare, Dubln 2, 502 AZ42, Ireand

6 The Carmage House, Staticen Works, Station Scac, Claverdon, Warnwackshire, Urited Kingdom, CV35 8PE
7 Zone irdustrielle de Cowtine 115 Rue Du Moureler 84000 Avicnon, Frarice

8. 12 Sabshury Place, Lordon, Ergand, WiH 1R

G The Corporaticr Trust Comiparyy, Coroeratior Trus: Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wiringtor 13801,
United States

10, 4th Foor Sadire Cour, 20 Casue Terrace, Edinbyrgh, Scotard EHLI2EN

1 Apo ouse, Mercury Park Wycombe Lane, Wockurn Green, Higr Wycomoe, Engard. H2L0 COHH

Fisiele

ne Vctona, 000, Austaalia

A

13 Beaufort Court, £gg Farm Lane, Kings Lengley, Hertforasure, WD2 8LR
14 7.8 Stratford Place, Loncon, England, WILC LAY

Tre direciors bel'eve that the carryng value of the jrvestments is supported by ther underiying net assets
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1
i

RFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limited 1s an unbsted company. Every month, our Board of Direciors agrees a prce at which -
will be willing to issue riew shares The share gnce is unaudited,

The figures below include the share price of ne previous parent inow Ferr Trading Groug Lirmited) as wel
as this entity.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12

i1
1.0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance is calculated pased on the sale prce for Fern's znares at 2 June each year The smare price 15

"ot subject to audit by Ermnst & Yourg LLF
Annual dizcrete parformancs

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

0504 e 8 BT e BT A et B i n $8 w v B3 T RET TS RERa v BWEN 5, G4 MRAR SR 855D FYR LR LR oo BRI

June 2021-22 9.91%

June 2020G-21 4.87%

June 201920 |  o3s%

June 2018-19 6.23%

June 201715 io8%

June 261637 - . 554%

Juﬁe 20i5—16 | 7 7 383%

June 2’:-)13--14 | - 3.72%
June 2~Olv2—13 - | ‘ - 397%
Sune ‘2011712 | 7 1.02%

Source Qatopus Irnvestments Lmidted, 2 June 2022,
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Directors and advisers

Directors Rogistered office
FS Latham I oBtn Floor, 33 Holbor,
K Wite, P London, England ECIN 2HT

PG Bariow

T Artnur (eopointad 1 Juy 2022, §§%€I§%‘i§§§?‘%€§@ﬂ§ auditors

Company secreiary

Cctopus Compary Secreanal Services Limiec :

Company number
12601636

Forward-looking statements
nis Annual Report cortans certamn forward-.ocking staements related o toe Campany's future busness
This Annual Report cort C f ard king =t s relared t e Company's f ot

nents are based on the Current

and financig' pertormance and future events or deveapments These s
knowledze ana expectat.ons of management ans are subect o assumptions, risgs and uncertainties, some
of which are relzed 1o factors that are beyond the cartrol of e Company. Accordingly, no assurance can
be given that any particulzr expectation witt be met and ‘orward-looking statermnerts regasdng past renes or

activties should nat be taken as 5 represaniatcr at such trends or activites wik Continue 1In the “uture Past

performance cgn ot be relieo O as @ qQuide o futuse periomance Nomr‘ﬂg NS Arinaat Regort should be

forecas:

corstruad as a o




